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Mission Statement

66 To deliver customer driven financial
solutions that contribute to the growth of the
Zambian economy and create wealth

for all stakeholders.)?

Vision
€670 be the most preferred and
leading financial institution in

our chosen marketsd?
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Board of Directors

Dr. Jacob M. Mwanza - Chairman
Mr. Eddie K. Samakai - Director

Mrs. Eva Jhala - Director

Mr. Hampande Hachongo - Director

Invulrugﬂ 0 ‘I




'°.\. CHAIRMAN's Statement

€ The banki ing sector asgwhole 38
was ifpmtfd byth®'Centr FalBank L-'

as hf’mq ﬂdi’!}‘ﬂﬂﬁ’h; capitalised -

and hm'n:q anhfﬂ{ tory aggregate

-qn

In;mrhh; ﬁnnuqhunf the year. ”

- o — '\,""'-.

- -
s | - u

INTRODUCTION

BESRERRARRRRRRNARERRRRR R AR RN RERRR RN R R AR ARREEERR R R AR R AR RE AT AR REAR AR E AR ERRR R R AR ARERRR RN

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Investrust Bank Plc, I am pleased to present to you the

Annual Report and consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary

Zambian Home Loans Limited (ZHL) for the year ended 31 December 2015. I wish to state

from the outset that this was a particularly difficult year operationally for the Bank and its

subsidiary and indeed for the Zambian economy as awhole.

The Board made key changes at executive
management level during the year 2015. Mr.
Friday C. Ndhlovu retired as Managing
Director on 31 May 2015 and was immediately
replaced by Dr. Richard K. E. Chembe. Mr.
Richard Phiri, former Deputy Managing
Director, retired on 31 July 2015 and the
position was abolished. The Board created a
new position of Chief Operating Officer and
appointed Mr. Isaiah Chindumba in that role
with effect from (7 September 2015. On behalf
of the Board of Directors, | wish to sincerely
thank Mr. Friday C. Ndhlovu and Mr. Richard

Investrust
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Phiri for their immense personal contribution
to the Bank over several years, and also to
welcome the new executive staff.

Tocap a difficult vear for the Bank, Dr. Chembe
was taken ill on 25 December 2015 and
continues to recuperate in hospital in South
Africa. In his place, the Board appointed Mr.
Chindumba to act as Managing Director with
effect from 29 December 2015. On behalf of the
Board of Directors, | wish Dr. Chembe a quick
recovery and Mr. Chindumba, all the best as he
spearheads the Bank's turn-around strategy.
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WORLD ECONOMY
The world economy grew at a moderate rate of

3.3% in 2015 compared to the growth rate of
3.4% achieved during 2014. There was steady
and stronger growth recorded in advanced
economies but a slowdown in underlying
growth recorded in emerging markets and
developing economies.

The key drivers of growth in advanced
economies, such as the USA and Euro zone,
were eased financial conditions, improved
fiscal policies, labour market conditions, wage
growth and consumer consumption, capital
investment and lower commodity prices
particularly oil prices and metal prices.

In emerging markets and developing
economies, the slowdown in economic growth
was attributed mainly to the negative impact of
lower commodity prices (metals and oil),
tighter external financial conditions,
rebalancing in the Chinese economy and
economic distress linked to geopolitical factors.

AFRICA AND SUB-SAHARAN ECONOMY
Economic growth in sub-Saharan Africa

dropped for the first time in many years during
2015, from as highas 5% in 2014 to 3.8% in 2015.
The slowdown was largely driven by the
effects of declining commodity prices
following a slump in demand from China that
has traditionally provided the major export
market for the predominantly commodity
exporting economies of the sub-Saharan
African countries. The major commodities
affected were oil and metals (copper, gold,
platinum, etc.). Countries that were directly
impacted on account of lower oil prices
included Nigeria and Angola, while countries
such as South Africa, Zambia and Congo DR,

suffered onaccountof lower metal prices.
Economic output in some countries in the

region such as South Africa and Zambia also

suffered from poor electricity supply owing to
a critical power shortage. There were also
economic distress related to disease burdens
such as the Ebola virus in West Alfrica, regional
political violence (eg during elections, etc.)
leading to loss of confidence in local or regional
economies.

ZAMBIAN ECONOMY
The growth in the economy slowed down

during 2015 to about 3.6% from close to 6%
during 2014 due to the effects of both external
shocks and domestic challenges. The decline in
the GDP during 2015 was largely due to
reduction in production in key economic
sectors such as mining, agriculture and
manufacturing in response to dampened
global demand for commodities and the impact
of deficits in electricity supply.

The economy recorded an expanded fiscal
deficit of 8.1% during 2015 that put mounted
pressure on the government's capacity to fund
both its normal operations and massive
infrastructure projects.

The macroeconomic fundamentals weakened
during 2015 as measured by the outturn on
annual inflation at 21.1% in December 2015
(against a target of 7%), significant
depreciation in the Kwacha exchange rate
during 2015 to K10.99/1USD as at 31 Dec 2015
(Dec2014:K6.4/1USD ), higher interest rates
and a negative balance of payments position
(current account deficit).

FINANCIALSECTOR
The financial sector was stable cluring 2015,

The banking sector consisted of nineteen (19)
commercial banks operating on the market.
The banking sector as a whole was reported by
the Central Bank as being adequately
capitalised and having satisfactory aggregate
liquidity throughout the year.
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During 2015 banking industry total assets
increased by 31% to K63 311 million as at 31
Dec 2015 (2014: K48 255 million) while total
deposits increased by 33% in 2015 to K46 151
million as at 31 Dec 2015 (2014:K34 653
million). Total banking industry net loans and
advances increased by 20% to K24 710 million
as at 31 Dec 2015 (2014:K20 532 million). Net
industry-wide profit after tax dropped by 13%
during 2015 to K982 million in 2015 (2014: K1
130 million).

Although the banking industry grew by 31% in
terms of total balance sheet size as measured by
total assets, industry profitability declined by
13% owing to the difficulty operating
environment that was obtaining during 2015. [t
was characterised by a severe ligquidity
shortage, volatility in the exchange rate, high
money market interest rates, and constrained
margins on lending,

The following regulatory and/or statutory
developments took place during 2015,

e Increase in Statutory Reserve Ratios -
through CB Circular 07/2015, the Bank of
Zambia increased the minimum statutory
reserve ratio on both public and
government Kwacha and foreign
currency deposit liabilities from 14% to

™ = - %
WA, & et~ ) X

18% with effect from April 2015. This
monetary policy decision resulted in
further tightening of market liquidity and
increase in money market interest rate.

BoZ Policy Rate -Bank of Zambia
increased the Policy Rate to 15.5% in
November 2015 from 12.5% that was
obtaining since December 2014. The Bank
of Zambia also dropped the concept of
placing a limit on the margin that
commercial banks could apply on lending
activities and left it to market players to
set their own margins on pricing,.

Overnight Lending Facility - CB Circular
22 /2015, on 18 November 2015, the Bank
of Zambia placed a limit on access to the
OLF by commercial banks of once per
week and abolished the automatic route
of accessing OLF through lapsing of
intraday loans. This action led to
increased pressure on interbank
borrowing and reduction in available
overall market liquidity. The Bank of
Zambia also increased the OLF lending
rate to 1000 basis points above the Policy
Rate thereby pushing the rate to a
minimum 25.5%. This resulted in the
immediate rise in the overnight interbank
lending rate to at least match the OLF rate.
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BANK'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVIEW - 2015 HIGHLIGHTS
The Group recorded a loss after tax of K52.33

million during 2015 (2014: loss after tax K6.36
million). Group net interest income declined by
19% to K39.77 million (2014: K49.30 million)
owing to a significant increase in funding costs
on account of increased money market
borrowing and sharp rise in money market
interest rates during 2015. Consequently,
interest expense rose by 13% to K108.99 million
in 2015 (2014: K96.75 million). Group net fees
and commission income reduced by 4% during
2015 to Ke0.56 million (2014: K63.04 million)
due to limited disbursements made on loans
and advances and lack of growth in deposits to
spur transactional income. Further, the
historical nonperforming portiolio,
particularly the insider-borrowers’,
contributed to the increased negative outcome.,
Lam pleased to inform the AGM that the Board
has taken decisive measures to recover these
loans by bringing the matter before the courts
of law to ensure recovery. Profit on foreign
exchange trading and revaluation reduced
substantially by 37% to K19.31 million (2014:
K30.85 million) due to reduction in trading
activity on account of Kwacha liquidity
constraints, lack of foreign currency liquidity
on the market and limited size of deals
restricted by the thin capital base., Gross
impairment charges increased by 32% in 2015
to KR.32 million (2014: K6.45 million).

Group total operating income reduced by 16%
to K119.64Mn in 2015 (2014: K143.19Mn)
whereas total operating costs increased by 30%
to K196.80Mn (2014:K150.57Mn), explaining
the significant deterioration in overall financial
results for the year. The increase in operating
costs was attributed to the general rise in
operating expenses due to higher inflation and

depreciation of the Kwacha on one hand and
exceptional staff separation costs amounting to
K23.50Mn incurred in relation to restructuring
of Bank operations. The Bank also expensed an
amount of K4.10Mn arising from a tax
assessment by the Zambia Revenue Authority
(ZRA) for the period 2008 to 2012 that was only
conducted in 2015. Total actual normal
operating costs were however contained
withinbudget.

The Group statement of financial position
recorded a reduction of 11% during 2015, with
total assets declining to K1 391Mn as at 31
December 2015 (2014: K1 564Mn). The decline
in total assets was mainly attributed to
reduction in cash balances and investments in
government securities prompted by the
significant reduction in customer deposits.

CAPITAL POSITION
During the year 2015 the Bank pursued the

capital raise exercise through a rights offer to
raise K40 million towards meeting the
minimum regulatory capital requirement. The
additional capital would also immediately
enhance and strengthen the Bank's capital base
to facilitate its growth aspirations into 2016 and
beyond. The Bank is currently executing a
rights offer and expects to complete the whole
exercise during April 2016,

The Bank would still have a shortfall on its
primary capital after completing the rights
offer to raise K40 million. The Board intends to
raise additional capital of at least K50 million to
cover the shortfall through issuance of non-
voting preference shares on terms that would
qualify it under Tier 1 conditions set by the
Central Bank, The Board would table a
proposal on this matter during this meeting
and seek to secure shareholders' approval to
issue preference shares as soonas possible.
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DIVIDENDS
The Directors recommend that no dividend be

proposed for the full year ended 31 December
2015.

FUTUREOUTLOOK
The Board has already embarked on a turn-

around strategy that would address the
following areas.

Restructuring and consolidation exercise
e Operate a sales oriented business model

fﬂn:using primaril}r on client pnrtfolin

growth,
e Improve operational efficiencies in

relation to organizational and operational

structures,
e Cost cutting and containment on

operational expenses,
e Rollout of electronic delivery channels to

accelerate growth through capital
efficient means.

Deposit mobilisation and diversification
e Increase and diversify deposit portfolio
in order to reduce on the high cost of

funds,
e Grow retail client portfolio through

branch structures,
e Agency Banking platform - use this

platform and a network of Agents to
accelerate market outreach on retail
clients.

Credit Control
e Recoveries drive on all past due loans and

advances enhanced to reduce facilities in
arrears and non-performing loans.

Increase Non-Interest Income
e Treasury- aggressive marketing of

treasury products.
e Fee and commission - improved

perfnmmnce of all delivery channels
(ATMs, mobile banking, internet
banking, etc.).

Equity capital raise
e Raise additional capital through rights
offers and augment it with debt capital
and/ or credit lines to accelerate growth

over the next five years.

The Board is confident about the potential to
turn-around the operation in the near future on
the basis of various initiatives and strategies
already being pursued by the Bank. The Bank
already has in place the infrastructure, systems
and people required to drive and realise the set
objectives.

CONCLUSION
I wish to recognise the fact that during 2015 the

Bank operated under extremely difficult
conditions most of which were dictated by
developments in the external environment,
particularly the Zambian economy. Against
this background, the Bank still remained
resilient and focused on its priorities aimed at
turning-around operating results into
profitability and to chart a growth trajectory.

I therefore wish to thank fellow members of the
Board of Directors for their commitment and
earnest contribution to the business during
2015. 1 also commend management and staff
for their dedication to improving the
operations of the Bank. Lastly I wish to
acknowledge the support rendered to the Bank
in several ways by shareholders and other
stakeholders during the year 2015.

A,

DR. }acﬁb M. Mwanza
BOARD CHAIRMAN
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MANAGING DIRECTOR's Report - 2015

Isaiah Chandumba -

Chief Operating

The global econonmy slowed down, recording only
moderale growth during the year 2015 conmipared lo
2014 mainly due to the decline in growth in emergmy
markets and developing economies. There was
however gradual but strong growth recorded by
advanced economies (Euro zone, USA, [apan) thal
recorded improved industrial outpud, decline in
unemployment rates and increased wages and
consumption, easing of financial conditions and
strengthening of currencies, increased capital

imovestments, etc.

The dismal performance by emerging markets

and developing economies was largely
attributed to the plunge in prices of key export
commodities that account for most of the
income for economies of these countries. The
world witnessed the biggest reduction in many
years in prices of oil and metals to levels that
threatened economic stability of most of the
affected countries, such as Zambia, Nigeria,
;11151314. Ghana, South Africa, Congo DR, etc.
This was linked to the drastic reduction in
import of commodities by China that

constituted the major export market,

ZAMBIAN ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
On the back of declining productivity due to

power cuts and low metal prices, the Zambian
economy that largely depends on copper
production and export, declined significantly
during 2015 recording GDP growth of only
3.6% compared to 6% during 2014.

The collapse in commodity prices resulted in
the price of Zambia's major export commodity,
copper, dropping to all time lows of around

US54,500/ tonne by end of December 2015, This
affected export earnings, balance of payments
and ultimately the exchange rate of the Kwacha
against major convertible currencies,

The Kwacha depreciated significantly during
2015, to K10.99:1USS as at 31 December 2015
(2014:K6.40:1US8). The exchange rate
deteriorated in response to a drop in copper
prices on the world market, shortage of US
Dollar liquidity on the market, general strength
of the US Dollar against other world currencies
and the trade deficit recorded during the year.

Inflation rate increased considerably to 21.1%
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 7.9%). The
increase was linked to the pass-through effects
of the rapid depreciation of the Kwacha and the
impact of power shortages on industrial and

ﬂgricultumlnulput.

The economy also experienced severe liquidity
conditions associated with the tight monetary
policy pursued by the Central Bank. The
government encountered a huge fiscal deficit

lnuenru?‘t“ O?



during 2015 and as such resorted to borrowing from money markets. These two factors
resulted in constrained market liquidity and pushed interest rates higher to above 22% on
government securities and 25.5% on the inter-bank market. The rates surpassed 30% on term
deposit placements post 31 December 2015.

2015 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Total Assets Net Interest Margin
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GROUP FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The Group recorded an operating loss after tax

of K52.33Mn during 2015 (2014: operating loss
of K6.36Mn). The operating results for 2015
deteriorated compared to 2014 owing to the
considerably higher funding costs, huge drop
in foreign exchange income, drop in fee and
commission income, increase in impairment
charges and the increase in operating expenses
that included exceptional items pertaining to
restructuring costs and costs relating to the
ZRA tax assessment.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income declined by 19% during
2015 to K39.77Mn (2014: K49.30Mn). This was
explained by the substantial increase (13%) in
interest and similar expenses to K108.99in 2015
(2014: K96.75Mn) due to increase in money
market interest rates that made term deposits,
inter-bank and BoZ borrowing more costly.

The concentration on term
deposits remained high at 47%
of the total deposit portfolio
thereby severely impacting on
interest costs as market
interest rates trended upwards.

To the contrary, interest and similar income
increased by only 3% to K148.76Mn in 2015
(2014:K146.05Mn) due to the limited growth
achieved in the loan book and the effect of
restricted lending margins because of interest
rate capping that was in place for mest part of
the year. Liquidity constraints also limited the
Bank's capacity to increase investment in
government securities to enhance interest
income.

Non-Interest Income
Non-interest income, represented by fees and

commissions and foreign exchange income,
declined by 15% to K79.87Mn in 2015
(2014:K93.89Mn), explained largely by a 37%
drop in foreign exchange income to K19.31Mn
(2014:K30.85Mn). The foreign exchange market
experienced severe shortage of foreign
currency liquidity and extensive volatility in
the exchange rate due to a huge mismatch
between supply of and demand for, foreign
currency and sporadic interventions by the
Central Bank. The Bank's lean capital base also
hindered efforts to underwrite sizeable deals
that could generate ample income during the
vear. Growth in fee and commission income
was hampered by lack of growth in the deposit
base needed to drive transactional charges and
the limited growth in the loan book that could
drive documentation and arrangement fee
income.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for 2015 amounted to
K196.80Mn (2014: K150.57Mn), representing a
31% increase attributed mainly to rise in
general operating costs linked to higher
inflation and steep depreciation of the Kwacha,
increase in staff costs to cover general increase
in cost of living, exception costs of K23.50Mn
incurred on staff expenses as part of the
restructuring exercise and costs of K4.1Mn
arising from the tax assessment for the period
2008 to 2012 conducted by the ZRA during
2015.

Impairment charges on loans and advances
increased by 32% during 2015 to K8.5Mn
(2014:K6.5Mn) after taking prudential action to
provide for more facilities that had shown
signs of distress. However, over the last five
vears, the Bank has recorded a considerable
reduction in loan loss provision as indicated in
the graphabove.
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Total Assets
Total assets amounted to K1 391Mn as at 31

December 2015 (2014: K1 564Mn), indicating a
reduction of 11% driven by a drop of 20% in
total deposits. The major reductions in assets
were recorded on cash and balances with BoZ
and other banks and on government securities.

Total Liabilities
Total liabilities amounted to K1 361Mn as at 31

December 2015 (2014: K1 481Mn). Customer
deposit liabilities dropped by 20% to K1 108Mn
at end of December 2015 (2014:K1 2391Mn), and
a corporate bond balance of K15.01Mn was
paid off during the year. The amounts due to
other banks amounted to K150Mn, represented
largely by inter-bank borrowing of K85Mn and
BoZ borrowing of K65Mn.

Ower the last four years the Bank successfully
repaid the corporate bonds and all the lines of
credit (AfDB/NORSAD, etc) that had been
contracted without a single default. The Bank
will pursue strategic partners for new lines as
soon as the new capital levels are met in order
to raise funds required to support the ever-
growing demand for credit.

Capital Position

The Bank's need to recapitalise cannot be
overemphasised. Whereas the Bank is in the
process of pursuing various initiatives for
recapitalisation as alluded to in the Chairman’s
statement, Management is working hard to
ensure return to profitability which would aid
capital preservation.

The Bank has regularly updated the Bank of
Zambia on the progress made in raising
additional capital and secured its approval to
extend the deadline to meet the prescribed
minimum primary capital of K104 million.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Credit Origination and Underwriting

The Bank recorded a reduction of 4% in its net
loans and advances portfolio during 2015 to
K476Mn (2014:K497Mn) while the lease
portfolio increased by 19% to K87Mn (2014:
K71Mn). However Group balances on loans
and advances increased marginally to K498Mn
due to significant growth of K21Mn in the loan
book for ZHL. The Bank made a strategic
decision to slowdown on lending in view of the
tightened liquidity on the market, restricted
and thin margins on lending in the face of the
exorbitant cost of funds linked to high money
market interest rates.

Branch Operations and Customer Service
During 2015, the Bank worked on

consolidating operations in its vast branch
network and as such did not expand the
physical branch network anymore. The Bank
marketed the Agency Banking platform
extensively and recruited Agents in various
parts of the country. This effort resulted in the
growth of the Eaze account product and the
associated deposit base that reached K4.50Mn
by 31 December 2015.

The Bank addressed hardware and software
challenges that had hampered the smooth
operation of the ATM network during 2014
and improved run time to above 90% during
2015. Other alternative delivery channels such
as InvestMobile and internet banking
(InvestNet) were availed at optimal levels
thereby providing convenience to customers
and decongesting the branches.

Information Technology
The Bank committed vast resources towards

strengthening and stabilising the performance
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of the ICT infrastructure and systems. Further
investments were made in [T hardware and
software, and indeed staff training. The
operation of the Bank's own switching system
was fine tuned and interfaces with other
systems re-enforced to ensure uninterrupted
services on alternative delivery channels
including Agency Banking.

Marketing and Publicity
The Bank continued to promote its brand and

business through appropriate marketing,
advertising and publicity programmes. Most
of the expenditure was in the area of product
development and campaigns aimed at
mobilizing additional deposits. The main
products that were promoted were
InvestMobile, InvestApp and Agency Banking
and this was done through various media
platforms such as the printed press, radio,
television and billboards.

The Bank continued its partnership with Zesco
United Football Club and accordingly
sponsored the football kit for the 2015/16
season. This initiative secured the Bank wide
publicity through jersey and touchline brand
propagation. The club supported the Bank

through maintenance of operational accounts.

Human Resources and Training

The Bank's establishment rose to 514 staff as at
31 December 2015 (2014: 506) in response to the
increase in scope of operations. Staff
development programmes at various levels
and through various training interventions
were conducted to induct new staff and impart
new skills on existing staff. The Bank also
continued to offer part sponsorship to staff
undertaking further studies to increase their
aptitude and improve on their qualifications.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Bank values its corporate social

responsibility programme and as such
conimits budgetary resources every year fo
supporting a number of deserving causes
that have the potential to improve the
social and economic wellbeing of the
conununities in which we operate.

Accordingly, the Bank invested K339,000
(2014: K507,000) and sponsored various
activities in the categories of arts and
cultural heritage, sports development,
churches, education projects, communily
health and welfare, environmental and
agricultural activities, professional
assoctations and other such causes.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Bank is nptimiﬁtic about its future

operating results going by the strategic
interventions that have been put in place by the
Board and Management. The focus of these
interventions is to immediately turn-around
the operating results into profitability to secure
the capital base of the Bank, improve its
liquidity position through a deposit
mobilisation strategy to be driven through our
distribution network. Realignment of our sales
teams is meant to improve our operational
capacity meant to generate increased interest
and fee based and commission income. There
are also other initiatives we have already
deployed through an aggressive recovery
drive to collect what is owed to the Bank in
some cases legal means are being pursued
vigorously.

In addition we are deploying cost cutting
measures meant to improve our network
efficiencies so as to boost the Bank's
profitability going forward. The goal is to be
lean and efficient.

The imminent increase in the Bank's primary
capital by an additional K40 million to be raised
through a rights offer shall enhance the capital
base and immediately increase the Bank's
capacity to underwrite bigger ticket deals.

The Bank has in place a rolling five-year
operating plan approved by the Board that

provides strategic direction on how to achieve
specific key objectives to enable the Bank turn-
around the operating results and sustainably
grow its business. The Bank's annual budget
that is aligned to the current five-year
operating plan has projected that the Bank's
operation would break-even by end of June
2016 and post a moderate profit for the full year
2016.

Management and the Board remain confident
that operating results shall improve as the
strategies already put in place start yielding
results.

CONCLUSION
I wish to thank most sincerely the Board of

Directors for their valuable input into the
business and the guidance and support given
to the management team during the year 2015. 1
also wish to extend my appreciation to all the
staff for their tenacity and hard work that
enabled the business to withstand challenges
that were encountered during this very
difficult period. I am equally indebted to our
shareholders and other stakeholders that have
supported the Bank through various means
during the year under review.
@t%
Isaiah GG, Chindumba
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MANAGING
DIRECTOR (ACTING)
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Board of DIRECTORS

Dr. Jacob M. Mwanza - Chairman

A seasoned Economist: former Governor of the
Bank of Zambia and former Senior Econoniic
Advisor at the International Monetary Fund,

Mr. Eddie K. Samakai - Director
]{l"l.:"l_l‘i..lhl!' [t'l‘rllr..l'l'h.i.' ["Z\!H'Ir '.‘l.hl.'l h.'l.:‘- |'|1.'|k'i. SETIHOT
management positions with prominent insurance
companies and former Managing Director of

Zambia State Insurance ﬂ.'qll']‘lur.l.llul'l

Mrs. Eva Jhala - Director
Lawyer and former Permanent Secretary in the
Ministry of Legal Affairs

Mr. Hampande Hachongo - Director

Fellow of the Association of Chartered

Certified Accountants in the UK and the Zambia Institute of
Chartered Accountants. His work life spans both public service
1:|||.1 pray ate sector w here hl,' has Nl"!’k'{'i'l I Varous sectors of I:]n,'
economy. He has over 30 years experience in advisory and audit
work, specialising in financial services
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Management TEAM

Isaiah Chindumba -
Cirief Operating Cfficeny’
Actimg Mamaging Director

Richard Mutukwa - Jaegueling Filamba -
Lrrperile & In Fipeai g Head I'T Hemd | i
Barrking Specudlint | Actimir )
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We treasure your smile

At this Bank we understand the banking needs of
everyone. In our custom no client is too small or
too big. Our aim is to delight everyone and keep
that smile on the faces of our customers every

time they visit or think of Investrust. l nve Str u St

Here's your invitation to join the smiling people! B a“k
Open an account at an Investrust Bank branch Plc
near you. There’s treasure in your smile!

m Lusaka ® Luangwa m Solwezi

m Kitwe m Chililabombwe m Livingstone
m Chipata m Chirundu m Lumwana
m Choma m Kabwe m Mongu
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INVESTRUST BANK PLC

Report of the DIRECTORS

The Directors present thelr report logether with the consolidated financial statements of Investrust Bank Plc (the
“Bank™) and its subsidiary company Zambian Home Loans Limited (logether the "Groug®) for the year anded 31
December 2015,

GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Investrust Bank Plc (the "Bank") is a public imited lability company and is incorporated under the Companies Act,
1984 (as amended) as a public limited company and domiciled in the Republic of Zambia, The Bank ig also licensad
undaer the Banking and Financial Services Act, 1984 (as amended) to conduct commarcial banking services. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business is as follows:

Ody's Park

Plot No. 19028/9
Great East Road
P.O. Box 32344
Lusaka

Other activities carmied out through the Bank’s subsidiary are Morigage financing for construction purposes to
employees of qualilying Institutions.

The activities of the Bank and its subsidiary companies fall within the financial services sector,
The Bank is listed on the Lusaka Stock Exchange (LuSE).

RESULTS, DIVIDENDS AND PERFORMANCE
The Consolidated results for the year were as follows:

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
Net interest income 39 765 811 49 302 667 37714805 49 302 667
Loss belore tax {77 163 B73) {7 381 373) (75442 001) (5 408 058)
Loss for the year (52 334 786) (6362751) __ (50914600) (5073 133)

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year

Desplle the Bank recording a loss for the year and not achieving the capilal adequacy as reguired by the law, the
Directors confirm the continued existence of the bank based on the plan pul in place as per nole 3.2, The Direclors
consider that the bank will confinue fo operate for the foreseeable future within the available financial resources and
based on a turnaround strategy approved by the board. Accordingly, the preparation of these financial slaterments on
the going concem basis is considered appropriate.
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Report of the DIRECTORS (continued)

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorsed and issued share capltal of the Bank remained unchanged during the year at 120,000,000 authorised
ordinary shares al par value of K1 each and 4 665,231 issued ordinary shares at par value of K1 each.

(I} Significant shareholding in the Bank

As at 31 December 2015, substantial shareholding (5 per cent or more) in the Bank's share capital were as follows:

2015 2014
Mean wood Venture Capital Limited 25% 20%
Daka Timothy ™ 11%
Jacob Lameck Shuma 9% 11%
ZCCM Investment Holdings Plc 1% 11%
Lupande Family Trust Limited 11% 11%
Workers' Compensation Fund Conirol Board 7% 7%
Stanbic Bank Zambia Staff Pension Schame 5% &%
Justin Bevin Zulu 5% 5%
DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year wora:
Dr. 4. M. Mwanza - Chairman
Mr. F, €. Nedhlovu - Managing Director and Chiefl Executive Officer (Retired April

2015)

Dr. R. K. Chembe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. E. Jhala - Non-axeculive
Mr. H. Hachongo - Non-executive
Mr. E. Samakai - Non-gxaculive
Mr. M. A Lungu - Non-execulive (relired April 2015)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND EMOLUMENTS

Excapt for the Managing Director, no other Director had a service contract with the Bank. No Director had an inlerest
in any significant contract enterad into, by the Bank, during the year.

The Interest of the directors of the Bank In the issued share capital of Investrust Bank Pic according o the register as
at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

Mumber of shares % Shareholding

2015 2014 2015 2014

DOr. J.M. Mwanza 545 - 0.1 -
Mrs. E. Jhala - . - =
Mr. H. Hachongo - :: - =
Mr. E. Samakai - - - -
Dr. R K Chemba - - - =

Mr . F.C Ndholvu (Retired)

- - -

The Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in notes 12 and 33 to the financial statemeants.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Group purchased property and equipment amounting to K13,070,121 (2014; K19,149 882) durlng the year. In the
opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount of property and equipment is not less than its camying value.
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Report of the DIRECTORS (continued)

EMPLOYEES

The average number of employees for each month of the year were as lollows:

January 519 Fabruary 5T
March 517 Agpril 517
May 547 June 546
July 545 August 528
Septembar 527 October 526
Novamber 523 Decambear 514

The total remuneration paid fo the Group's employees during the year amounted fo K98,744.366 (2014:
K68,376,751),

The Group recognises |is responsibility regarding the occupational health, safety, and welfare of its employees and
has put in ptace measures (o meet these responsibilties.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As required by the Banking and Financial Services Act, 1994 (as amended) and International Accounting Standard
Number 24, related party transactions are disclosed under note 33 to the financial statements.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Bank did not conduct any research and development activities during the year,

GIFTS AND DONATIONS

The Group made donations during the year amounting to K339,132 (2014: K506,688) in order to support varous
socially responsible causes.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

In its normal operations, the Bank iz exposed to a number of risks, Tha most significant of which ame credit, market,
operational and liquidity risks. The Bank's risk managamenl objectives, policles and siralegies are disclosed in Note 5
ta the financial stalemants,

The Directors have approved policles to mitigate the above rsks by introducing controls thal are designad to
safeguard the Group's assets while aliowing sufficient freedom for the novmal conduct of business, The Audit, Loan
Review and Risk Management Commitlees camy oul independent reviews lo ensure compliance with financial and
operational contrala,

PROHIBITED BORROWINGS OR LENDING

There ware no prohibited borrowings or lending as defined under Section 72 and 73 of the Banking and Financlal
Services Act, 1994 (as amanded).

COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

The Bank has a compliance function whose responsibility is to monitor compliance with regulatory requiremants and
the various internal control processes and procedures,

COMPLIANCE STATUS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES

A review of Investrust Bank Ple's compliance with the LuSE Corporale Governance Code as al 31 December 2015,
showed that full compliance rate was at 94%. The summary of the comgpliance status is shown in the chart below.
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Report of the DIRECTORS (continued)

COMPLIANCE STATUS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES (CONTINUED)

B NOMN-COMPLIANT;

3!‘,
‘ 0 NON-APPLICABLE;
3%

W FULLY COMPLIANT;
94%

SUMMARY OF AREAS THAT ARE NOT FULLY COMPLIANT OR INAPPLICABLE
Areas of non-compliance

i) Appratsal of Chairperson: The Board has not conducted a formal appraisal of the Chairperson. However, the Board
i3 in the process of establishing the framework for Direclor appraisal and once the framework is approved, all
Direclors will be appraised as part of the overall Board Evaluation.

ii} Board Evaluations: The Board has made provision for Board Evaluation in thie revised Board Charter but is yet to
conduct its first evaluation. The Board will engage the Institute of Directors, subject 1o availability of resources, to help
draw up & comprehensive Board Evaluation framework which will form a basis for afl fulure evaluations.

iliy HIVAIDS Policy: Whereas tha Bank suppors various HIVVAIDS advocacy campagns, no formal policy axists 1o
address and manage the potential impact of HIWAIDS. The Board realises the importance of this policy and will
ensure compliance in the FY 2016.

Areas of partial compliance
MNone.
Areas not applicable

i) The Bank doas nol have an independent director as Deputy Chairparson bacause the roles of Chairperson and
Chief Executive Officer are parformed by two (2) different people.

il} The Bank does not offer Directors any share options, This negates the nead for shareholder approval for such
optons.

iii) The Bank does not run any plant and machinery. However, the Bank maintains a palicy for workplace safety.
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Report of the DIRECTORS (continued)

SUMMARY OF AREAS THAT ARE NOT FULLY COMPLIANT OR INAPPLICABLE (CONTINUED)

Areas not applicable {Continued)

Category

General matters
Chairman & CEO
Executive & NED's
Direclors compensalion
Share & share dealings
Board meatings

Board evaluations
Company secrelary
Board committess
Legal & compliance
External audit
Internal audi
Risk
Integrated
reporting
Disclosure & stakeholder
raparting

Organisation integrity

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

sustainability

R

. E

[

g é

"] —

£ 2 2,

e § E a8
é e 'E: =t E 'E-

2 m E To o
'g g = = g e 2 i & g
2 < = @ a2 = 2 f 2
15 14 1 13 1 7% 87% 0% 7%
5 5 4 1 0% 80% 0%  20%
4 3 1 3 25%, 75% 0% 0%
9 g a 0% 100% 0% 0%
4 3 1 3 258 75% 0% 0%
4 4 4 0% 100% 0% 0%
1 1 0 1 0% 0% 0% 100%
3 3 3 0% 100% 0% 0%
10 10 10 0% 100% 0% 0%
2 2 2 0% 100% 0% 0%
6 6 & 0% 100% 0% 0%
12 12 12 0% 100% 0% 0%
7 7 7 0% 100% 0% 0%
7 7 7 0% 100% 0% 0%
4 4 4 0% 100% 0% 0%
8 8 6 0% 100% 0% 0%
99 % 3 a3 03 1 a6 1 3

Mr. F.C. Ndhlovu, the founder and Managing Director of the Bank retired from the Bank during the year 2015, In his
place, the Board appointed Dr. Richard Chembe as Managing Director.

The Bank conducted a restructuring exercise aimed at strengthening its Management structures and skewing the
Bank's resources towards frontline retail business.

In 2016, the Bank wili seek to leverage its strong refail brand o pursue a tumaround driven primarily by its strategy to
halt further branch expansion, relaunch Agency banking and grow income from the use of ils robus!l electronic

banking platform.
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Report of the DIRECTORS (continued)

AUDITORS

Messrs Deloitte & Touche retire at the next Annual General Meeting. A resolution to appoint external auditors for the
forthcoming year and authorising the Direclors lo determine thelr remuneration will be put 1o the Annual General
Meating.

By nrdar of :hu Board.

(e

Gulhbiﬂ K Timbn
Company Secretary

Lusaka,

DATE: 15th February, 2016
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Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BANK'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Investrust Bank Plc's vision is- "o ba tha most preferred and leading financial institution In our chosan markets” and
a mission stalement - “delivering customer driven financial solutions; contributing to the growth of the Zambian
economy and creating wealth for all stakeholders®. Corporate Govemance stands al the core of the Bank's
endaavour to realise its vision, To thal end, we have adopted the indusiry's Corporate Governance guidelines and
made them policy. In addilion o voluntary practices, we monitor current issues in Corporate Governance and seek
1o pursua intemational bast practice,

The Shareholders

The Bank's shareholders approve the Bank's crilical and sirategic matters. They have no direct powers o manage
the Bank which responsibliity is delegated to the Board of Directors. Thera is regular dlalogue with individual and
institutional sharaholders, financial analysts and brokers, which provides opporiunities for Directors lo hear the
views of shareholders directly,

All sharaholders are invited 1o attend the Annual General Maseling and 1o participate in proceedings. Notice is sent
to sharcholders al least twenty-one working days in advance of tha meaeting, At the Annual Genaral Meating,
separate resolutions are proposed on each substantive issue.

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible to the sharsholders for formulating policies and stategic direction, monitoring
managamenl and opearational performance, risk managemen! processas, compliance and satling of authority levels
as well as the selection of new Directors. The Board is also responsible for the integrty and quality of
commuriication with siakeholders, Including employees, requiators and sharehoiders. The Board delegates the
managemen| and day-o-day running of the Bank lo the Managing Director who is also the Chiel Executive Officer,

The Board is composed of six (8) individuals of unguestionable integrity and good character. The Chief Executive
Officer is the only executive director, The directors have broad skills, experiance and experise all of which are
combined in order for the Board to fulfil the Bank's goals and in order that the Board discharges its responsibilities
to sharaholders and stakeholders effectively.

The Bank has insurance for Directors and Officers covering legal actions brought against them in the course of
exacuting thelr duties,

Roles of Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer

The rolas of Chalrperson and Chief Executive Oficer are separate and neither individual has unfelterad control
over decision-making. The Chairperson s a Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board. The Chairperson's
main responsibility is to lead and manage the work of the Board to ensure that || operates effectively and fully
discharges |18 legal and regulatory responsiblliies.

The parformance of the Chiel Executive Officer is appraised on an ongoing basis by (he Board, which recelves
reports on:

=  the financial parformance of the Bank and the achievement of financial objectives;

=  the achievements of sirategic objectives;

- the succession plans, Including leadership, organisational climate, organisational goats, cullure, job structure
and communication; and

=  |he outcome of contacts with strateglc stakeholdars in the markel in an effort to mobillse and grow tha
businezs of the Bank,

The Birectors who held office during the year were:

Dr. J. M. Mwanza - Chairperson

Dr. R. K.E. Chembe - Managing Director and Chiel Execulive Officer (from May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhlovu - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (until April 2015)
Mrs. E. Jhala E MNon-Execufive Director

Mr. H. Hachongo - MNon-Executive Director

Mr. E. Samakai = Non-Executive Director

Mr. N A Lungu - Non-Executive Director {Retired April 2015)
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Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

BANK'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board meetings

The Board has schaduled guarerly meetings. it also has Special Meetings and Tele-Confarences depending on
Ihe exigancles of the business. The Board also passes resolutions by circulation. Resolutions passed by cinculation
ara reconfirmed al the next scheduled Board meeling. All Board members receive regular reports from
Managemenl and members sesk brigfings from management on specific malters. Board members also have
access 1o Managemen! through the Chalrperson, the Chiefl Exscutive Officer or the Company Secretary atl any lime.
In addition, theme ame guidelines in the Board Charer which entitle each director to seek independent professional
advice al the Bank's expanse, prior 1o the Chairparson's approval

Indapendence of Directors

Directors are expected 1o bing independent views and judgment (o Board deliberations. The Board considers that
all Non-Executive Directors are independent. That is, in the year 2015. no non-execulive director had any
relationships that could materally interfere, or be perceived to matenrally interfere, with the Director’s unfettered and

indapandent judgmeant.
Conflict of Interest

Directors are also expected to avoid any action, posifion or inferest that conflicts or appears to conflict with an
inteérast of the Bank. Any Director who has a matenal parsonal interest In a matter relating 1o the Bank's alfairs must
notify the other directors of thal interest,

Appointment and re-appointment of Directors

Two thirds of the Directors ratire by rotation esch year and an equal number is elecled or re-elected by the
mambers at the Annual Genaral Meeling in accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 Chapter 388 of the Laws of
Zambia.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board discharges some of its core responsibilities through specialized commiliees. These are the Audit. Risk,
Remunearation and Human Resources, Loans Review, and Assels and Liabilities Committeas. The Terms of
Reference for these commiltees are incorporated in the Board Charter. The Audit and Risk Committees have
additional specific Terms of Reference. These committeas have scheduled gquarierly meetings as well as special
meetings depending on the exigencies of the business. The Board also has power to establish other sub-
commitiees o address matiers of specific importance,

Additionally, the Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to Management Commiltees which include; the
Management Commitiee, Managemeant Credit Committee, Management Sub-ALCO and Credit Risk Managament
Committes.

A description of each of the Board's core committees is given below:
Audit Committes

The Audit Committee provides direction to the audit funclion and monitors the quality of internal and external audit,
The responsibilities of the Audil commitiee Include overseeing the financlal reporting process to ensure (aimess,
comprehensivenass and credibility of financial siatements, review of the functioning of the Whistie Blower Policy,
review of quarterly and annual financial statements before submission fo the Board, review of the adequacy of
internal control systems and the intemal audit funclion, review of compliance with inspection and audit reports from
both intemmal and extermal auditors and review of the findings of intemal investigations,
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Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committea
The Commillee was chaired by Mr. H Hachongo. The Committes during the year was made up of the following:

Mr. H. Hachongo - Chairperson

Dr, R. K.E. Chambe B Managing Director and Chief Execulive Officer (from May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhiowvu - Managing Director and Chief Execulive Officer (until Apr| 2015)
Mrs. E. Jhala = MNon-Exscutive Director

Mr. E. Samakai - Non-Executive Director

Meetings were held regulary throughout the year and were attended by the Internal Audilor as well as Senior
Management whare necassary,

Board Asset and Liabllities Committee ("TALCO")

The main purpose of the Committee is lo manage the liquidity and cash flow of the Bank, capital position, asset and
hability mismaiches, compliance with internal limits and regulatory raties and exposures (o exchange rale and
interest rale movemants. The Commities was chaired by Mr. E. Samakai.

The Commitiea comprisaes the following:

Mr. E. Samakai - Chairperson (Appointed April 2015)

Mr. M. A Lungu - Chairperson (Relired Aprl 2015)

Dr. R. K.E. Chembe - Managing Direcior and Chief Executive Officer {from May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhiowvu - Managing Director and Chie! Exacutive Officer (until Aprdl| 2015)
Mr. H. Hachongo = Non-Executive Director

Loans Review Committee

The Loans Review Committee was chaired by Mra E. Jhala. The Loans Review Committee s constituled in
accondance with the Banking and Financial Services Act, 1984, (as amended). The Committee mests to review tha
quality and collactabillty of the Bank's loan portfolio, including any accruad and unpaid interest. Repors of such
Ioan reviews are made for the Board of Directors’ necessarny action,

Tha Commitlee comprises the following;

Mrs. E. Jhala - Chairperson

Dr. J. M. Mwanza = MNon-Executive Direclor

Mr. N. A& Lungu - Mon-Executive Director (Retired April 2015)

Dr. R. K.E. Chambe - Managing Director and Chief Executiva Officer (from May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhiovu «  Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (until April 2015)

Remuneration and Conditions of Service Committee

The Remuneration and Conditions of Service Committea was chaired by Mr. E. Samakai , The Committes met
regularly 1o review/consider and approve and make recommendations to the Board as appropriate, on maiters
relating to conditions of service and remuneration for staff of Investrust Bank Plo.

During the year, the Commitlee was made up of the following:

Mr. E. Samakai - Acting Chairparson

Dr. J. M. Mwanza - Man-Executive Direclor

Mr. H. Hachongo = Non-Executive Director

Dr. R_K.E. Chembe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (from May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhlowu - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (until April 2015)




Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Neminations Committee

This function has been performed by the main Board In view of the small volume of matiers o be dealt with,
Board Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Commillea’s rola is to overses risk managameanl and compliance within the Bank. It reviews,
on behalf of the Board, the key risks and compliance issues inherent in the business and the system of intemal
control necassary o manage them and presenis its findings to the Board. This involves oversight of management's
responsibility o assess and manage the Bank's risk profile and key risk exposures covenng cradit, market,
funding/liquidity, operational, legal and compliance nisks.

The Commitlee makes recommendations to the Board regarding the Bank's nisk appetile and all material policies
relating to the Bank's rsk profile. The Committee oversaw a successful completion and approval of an Enterprise
Risk Management Folicy as required by the Bank of Zambia and in praparation for the implementation of BASEL |l
Risk Managament Model,

The Commitlee was comprised of the following during 2015

Mrs. E. Jhala - Chairparson

Dr. J. M, Mwanza - Non-Executive Director

Dr. R. K.E. Chembe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Appointed May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhlovu - Manaaging Director and Chief Executive Officer (Retired Apnil 2015)

Datails of how each risk is managed are contained in the notes to the financial statements undar the risk
managemani section.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated the responsibiity for the day o day management of the Bank's operations 1o the
Managing Directar who is also the Chie! Executive Officer. The Chiel Executlve Officer is supported by various
Commitleas.

Management Committes

The Commitlee met every monih o review the performance of the Bank for each business unit and to discuss any
operatonal matters affecting each unil.

The Managemant Commitlee was made up of the following:

Mr. |. Chindumba = Chief Operating Officer (Appointed Seplember 2015)

Mr. R. Phiri - Daputy Managing Director (Ratired July 2015)

Mr. C.K. Tembo = Legal Counsel and Company Secratary

Mr. H. Mafuta - Head - Corporate and Investiment Banking

Mr. M. Sikanda - Acting Head - Operations

Mr. P. Nothalvu - Head - Operations (Resigned August 2015)

Mr. E. Mtonga = Head - Credit Contral

Mr. G. Siziya - Head - Credil Risk Managemen! (Retired Ssplember 2015)
Mr. C. Daka - Acting Head - Credit Risk Management (Appointed October 2015)
Mr. A Sinkala = Financial Controller

Mr. P, Mwale - Head - Treasury

Mrs, J. Filamba - Head - Information Technology (Appointed September 2015)
Mr. 5. Khambete - Haead - Risk Managemenl and Training

Mr. 5. Banda - Head - Internal Audit
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Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Management Credit Committes
In managing credit risk, the Loans Review Commiltes was assisted by a Management Credit Committee, which was

responsible 1o the Board for approval and exiension of advances. The Commiltee meets as and whan required 1o
discuss credil matters and approval, and makes recommendation for ioans and advances.

The Management Credil Commilles comprised the following:

Dr. R. K.E. Chembe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Appointed May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhilovu - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer {Retired April 2015)
Mr. R. Phiri - Deputy Managing Director (Retired July 2015)

Mr. |. Chindumba = Chief Operating Officer (Appointed September 2015)

Mr. E. Mionga - Head - Credit Conirol

Mr. G. Siziya = Head - Credit Risk Managament {Retired September 2015)

Mr. P. Ndhlovu . Head - Operations (Resigned August 2015)

Mr. C. K. Tembo B Company Secretary and Legal Counsel

Cradit Risk Management Committes

The Committes reported directly to the Board through the Board Risk Management Commiltee. The committee had
been set up In compliance with the risk management guidelines issued by the Central Bank of Zambia. At minimum,
it was responsible for;

=  Implamenting the credit risk policy and strategy approved by the Board;
=  Monitoring credit sk on a bank-wide basis and ensunng compliance with limits approved by the Board;

- Recommending to the Board, for its approval, clear policies on standards for presentation of credit proposals,
financial covenants, rating standards and benchmarks, and

*  Recommending the delegalion of credit approving powers, prudential limits on large credil exposures,
standards for loan collateral, portfolic management, loan review mechanism, nisk concentrations, risk
maonitoring, evaluation and conltrol, pricing of loans, provisioning, regulalory and legal compliance, ele,

The Commitlee comprised the following,

Or. R. K.E. Chembe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer {Appointed May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhiovu - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Retired April 2015)
Mr. R. Phiri - Deputy Managing Director (Retired July 2015)

Mr. |. Chindumba - Chief Operaling Officer (Appointed September 2015)

Mr. 5. Khambete - Head - Risk Management and Training

Mr. A Sinkala - Financial Controller

Management Sub-Asset and Liabilities Committee ("Sub -ALCO")

Tha main purpese of the Committae is to managae the liquidity and cash fiow of the Bank, capital position, asset and
liability mismalches, compliance with internal limits and regulatory ratios and exposures (o exchange rale and
interest rate movemenis on a daily basis in line with Board approved policles, procedures and limits to ansure that
the Bank meets all the daily regulatory requirements.

The Committee comprised the following:

Dr. R. K.E. Chambe - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Appointed May 2015)
Mr. F. C. Ndhiowu - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Retired April 2015)
Mr. R. Phiri - Deputy Managing Director {Retired July 2015}

Mr. |. Chindumba - Chief Operating Officer (Appointed September 2015)

Mr. H. Mafuta - Head - Comporate and Invesiment Banking
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Statement on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Management Sub-Asset and Liabllities Committee (“Sub -ALCO")} Continued)

Mr. A Sinkala - Financial Controller

Mr. E. Mionga - Haad - Credit Coniral

Mr. P. Mwale - Head - Treasury

Mr. 5. Khambete = Head - Risk Managerent and Training
OTHER MATTERS

Organisational Ethics and Business Integrity

Good governance and athical conduct are crifical to counterparty and investor parceptions of the Bank. Investrust
Bank Plc strives to ensure that its integnty and professional conduct are beyend reproach, While || is probably
impossible lo achleve perfection, the Bank attempls to limit the incidence and cost of unethical behaviour 1o the
stakeholders.

The Bank has adopied a code of conduct formulated by the Bankers Association of Zambia, The Code
comprehensively deals with various issues [ncluding money laundering, insider trading, bribery, political aclivities,
confidentialily and data privacy. Investruslt Bank Plc has a zero lWolerance approach lowands inapproprate or
fraudident conduct exhibited by Managemeant or staff at any level

Know your customer and money laundering policies

The Bank has adopted a know your cusiomer (KYC) policy and anhh money laundering policies and adheres lo
current regulatory and legal requirements and guidefines n these araas,

Whistle Blower Palicy

The Bank has reviewed and updated the whistle blower policy. In terms of this poficy, employeas of the Bank are
duty bound lo ralse |ssues, il any, on breach of any law, stalute or regulation by the Bank and on accounting
policies and procedures adopled for any area or lem and report them o the Audit commitiee through specified
channals. A bank wide sensifisation is organised on an on-going basis to ensure effective use of the palicy.

Investruge, | 20



Statement of Responsibility for
THE ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 164 (6) of the Companies Act, 1994 {as amended) and section 56 (2) of the Banking and Financial Services
Act, 1994 (as amended) require the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of its profit or loss for that period.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity
of the financial statements and related information. In addition, the Directors are respansible for preparing the
directors report. The Independent extemal auditors, Messrs Deloltte & Touche, have audited the financial
statements and their report |s shown on pages 14-and 15,

The Directors are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed fo provide reasonable but
nol absolute, assurance as 1o the refiability of the financial statements, and o adequstely safeguard, verify and
maintain accountability for assels, and to prevent and detect material misstaterments, The systems ar implemented
and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has
coma lo the attention of the Direclors to indicate that any material breakdown In the functloning of these controls,
proceduras and systems has cccurrad during the year under review,

These consolidated financial stalements are prepared on a going concern basis. Except as disclosed in the
Directors report and on Nole 3.2 to the financial statements, nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to
indicate that the Bank will nol remain a going concem in the foreseeable future.

In the opinion of the Directors:

. the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the loss of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2015;

= the stalement of financlal position is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank as al 31 Decamber 2015;

= there are reasonable grounds to belleve that the Bank will be able to meet its debls as and when they fall
due,

=  the Group accounts are drawn up 30 as 1o give a true and fair view of:
{iY the loss of the Bank and its subsidiary for the financial year;
{il} the state of affairs of the Bank and ils subsidiary as at the end of the financial year, and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemalional Financial Reporting
Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 1994 (as amended), the Banking and
Financial Services Act, 1884 (as amended) and the Securities Act, 1983 (as amended).

Signed on___19tyFebruary, 2016 o penaif of the Board by:
. ) ¥

253 ;
Managing Director
% -
g
Company Secretary
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Independent AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of
Investrust Bank Plc

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of Investrust Bank Plc
and its subsidiary, Zambian Home Loans Limited sel out on pages 15 to 99 which comprise the consolidated
and separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or
less and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate stalement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then endad, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements thal give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Banking and
Financial Services Act, 1994 (as amended), the Companies Act, 1994 (as amended), and the Securities Act,
1993, and for such internal contral as management determines s necessary o enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from matarial misstatemant. whethaer due 1o fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements basad on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiling. Those Standards
require thal wa comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance aboul whether the consolidated and separate financial slatements are free from material
misstatemant.

An audil involves pardorming procedures o oblain audil evidance about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures salected depand on the audilor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whather due o fraud or eror, In making thosa nisk assessments, the auditor conslders internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an
opinion an the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting estimates made by
managemant, as wall as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolldated financial siatements.

We belisve that the audll evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Investrust Bank Ple and its subsidiary Zamblan Home Loans Limited as al 31 December 2015, and
of their financial performance and cash fiows for the year then ended In accordance with International
Financtal Reporting Standards, and in the manner reguired by the Banking and Financial Services Act, 1904
(as amended), the Companies Act, 1884 (as amended) and the Securities Act , 1883 (as amended) so far as
concerns the membears bank.
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Independent AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Other matters

The supplementary information sel oul on pages 98 to 100 does nol form part of the financial statements and
is presented as additional information. We have nol audited these schedules and accordingly we do not
express an opinlon on them.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Companias Acl, 1984 {as amended) under section 173{3) requires that in carrying out our audil, we
consider and report to you on the following matters: we confirm that, in our opinion, the accounting and other
records and regisiers have been properdy kept in accordance with the Act.

In accordance with the Banking and Financial Services Act, 1994 (as amended), we report that in our opinion:

The Bank has complied with the provisions of this Act and the regulations, guidelines and prescriptions
under this Act with the following exceptions:

(I} The Bank did notl achisve the regulatory capital as required by the Bank of Zambla Circular number 2
of 2012. The Bank's regulatory capital as at 31 December 2015 was K 17 million.

(i} The requirements of Statutory Instrument No. 142 and No, 184 as set out in Nates 30(b) and 5.12 o
the financial statements respectively, have not been met;

Included in gross loans and advances 1o customers of K732 million are sight non-pedorming loans
whose pnncipal amounts total K91 million and are more than 5% of regulatory capital as per section
G4{2)d)(il) but for which impalrmean! losses have been recorded. Our audit opinion is nolt gualitfied in
respect of this matter as adequate loan impairment charges have been recorded for these non-
performing loans;

We ara not aware of any transaction that has not been within the powers of the Bank or which was
contrary to the Act; and

The Bank made available all necessary information to enable us to comply with the requirements of this
Act.

In accordance with requirements of the Schedule IV, Rule 18 of The Securities Act, Cap 254 of the Laws of
Zambia, we confirm that:

the annual financial statements of the llcensee have baen properly prepared in accordance with SEC
Rules;

the licensea has, throughout the financial year, kept proper accounting records in accordance with the
requirements of the SEC Rules;

no transactions or condiions affacting the well being of the Bank have come 1o our attention that in our
opinion are nol satlsfactory and require rectification;

the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement with the
licenses's accounting recards and.

wa have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of cur knowladge and belief,
are necassary for the purposes of the audit.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ALl

J TEMBO

AUDIT PARTNER
PC NO: AUDIFO0D433

DATE: 15th February, 2016




Consolidated STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the year ended 31 December 2015

NOTES

Interast income B
Interest expenses T

Met interest income
Impairment charges for credit losses 8

Met interest income aftar impairment
charges for crodit losses

Fee and commission Income 8
Fae and commission axpansa 10

Net foo and commission income

Mot foreign exchange gains and losses
Other operating incomes

Other income

Total oparating income

Oparating axpenses Lk
Loss before tax 12
Income tax cradit 13
Loss for the year

Other comprehansive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Amortisation of revaluation reserve

Total comprehansive loss fer the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owmers of thae Bank
Non-controlling infarests

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to:
Owmers of the Bank
MNon-controling intarests

Earnings per share
Basic and dilutad earnings par share a5

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014

K K K K

148756 584 146052057 1464400959 146 052057
(108990 773) (96 749.330) (108 726 154) (96 749 390)
39 765 811 49 302 667 37714805 40 302 667
{8 490 981) (6 452 867) (8321 194) (6452 309)
31274 830 42 849 800D 20393611 42 850 358
63 942 238 B4 561 371 62583511 64 576247
{3 382 159) (1 526 317) (3382 159) (1934 738)
60 560 079 §3 035 054 50201352 62641500
18 338 580 29 269 834 18338 560 29 269834
975123 1 582 087 975 123 1 582 097

19 313 703 30 851 931 19313703 30851931
111 148 612 136 736 785 107 908 666 136 343 798
(188312 485) (144 118 158} (183 350 667) (141 751 854)
(77 163 873) (T381373) (75442001) (5 408 056)
24 829 087 1018 622 24 527 392 334 923
(52334786)  (6362751) (50914 608) (5073 133)
359 386 350 386 359 386 350 386

359 386 350 386 359 386 350 386
(51 975 400) (6003 365) (50 555223) (4 713 747)
(51 631 260) (5730838) (S0914609) (5073 133)
(703 526) {631 §13) 5 a
{52 334 T86) (6362751) (50914 609) (5073 133)
{51 631 260) (5730838) (S0914609) (4 713747)
(703 526} {631 913) . .

52 334 786 6 362 751 50 914 609 4 713 747
{11.14) {1.36) (10.91) {1,08)
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Consolidated STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION at 31 December 2015

ASSETS

Cash and balances with the Bank
af Zambla

Balances due from other banks

Held to maturity investments

Other assels

Inventory

Loans and advances (o customers

Finance lease recevables

Equity investments

Current tax assais

Dafermad tax assel

Property and equipment

Deferrad sollware development
axpanditurs

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customerns
Debl securities in issue
Barrowings

Balences due lo other banks
Dither liabilitins

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Share prem|um
Statudory resarves
General banking resane
Revalualion resarves
Retaned earmngs

Equity stinbutable to owners of the
Bank

Nan-conirolling interasts

Total equity
Total equity and llabilities

NOTES

14
15
18
17
14

20
13
28
21

23

24
25
26
15
27

29

30 (a)
30 (b)

GROUP BANK

2015 2004 2015 2014

K K K K

303 511 974 380 359 966 303 511 524 380 368 400
5 066 455 112 5683 603 5 066 455 112 563 693
213 028 187 366 462 158 218 494 197 366 492 158
150 711 104 25 403 1895 150 336 910 29 116 960
1 008 T96 768 GRA 1 008 706 768 BAA
497 513 329 497 158 BO3 A476 426 136 496 599 418
86 550 585 71 193 667 85 550 585 71193 66T
583 687 554 972 TABZTIT 7404 052

26 817 TEO 21617473 26 817 TED 21 817473
27 076 425 2 220 356 26 091 031 1 536 657
68 116 310 71555 161 67 970 952 71412 224
10 850 679 0 646 450 10 850 679 9 546 450
1390845331 1563584672 1380 617 822 1 568 £99 838
1108233480 1390818433 1112375152 1402 108 228
- 15010 000 - 15 010 000

28 B72 406 18 265 T01 20 688 406 18 265 701
150 512 786 - 150 512 TB6 -
T3 427 248 57 336 341 71 155 900 56 715722
1361045920 1481430475 1354 732 244 1 462 069 851
4 665 231 4 665 23 4 665 231 4 665 231

26 T26 530 26 726 530 26 726 530 26 T26 530

4 665 231 4 665 231 4 665 231 4 665 231

13 627 477 10 123 492 10 890 559 10 123 492
2515699 2 B75 085 2515600 2 B75 085

(27 695 116} 27 080 743 {23 577 672) 27 744 B1B
24 505 052 76136 312 25 BES 578 T6 BOO 187
5294 359 5 997 B85S - -

20 799 411 82 134 167 25 8BS 578 76 BOO 187
1390845331 1563584672 1380 61T 822 1 568 BO9 AAR

The responsiblliies of the Bank's Directors with regard 1o the préparation of the inancial statements are sel oul on page 13. The
consolidated financial statements on pages 16 to 101 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 February 2016 and

wtre signed bahalf by

ot

Lol

“Inlﬂlr‘.ﬂﬁ“m 2
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Consolidated STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended 31 December 2015

DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year

Adjusted for:

Depreciation and amorlisation expense

ZRA tax assessmaent amounts

Loss on disposal of proparty and equipmant

Fair values loss on markelable equity investments
Exchange loss on long lamm bomowings

Impairmant loss recognised on loans and advances
Income tax expense {credit)

Operating (loss)Profit before changes in operating funds

Decreasa (increasa) in hald to maturity investmants
(Increase) decrease in olher assels

Incraasa in inventory

(Increase) decrease in loans and advances
Incraasa in finance lease recelvables
Decraase (increasa) in customer depasits
Increase in othar kabilities

Cash (used in) generated from operations

Income taxes paid and sulfered
Cash (used in) generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase ol property and squipmant

Purchase aof software davelopmen! expanditure
Proceeds on disposal of property and eguipment

Net cash usad in investing activities

FIMANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributlens from Minarity Shareholdors
Repayments of borrowings

Repaymant of dabl in issue

Met proceeds from issue of Corporate Bonds
FPaymants 1o acquire aquity nvestmants

Net cash used In financing activities

Met (decrease) Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of the yaar
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of the year

Comprising of:

Cash and balances with Contral Bank

Balancas due from other banks

Balances due to other banks

Hald 1o matwrity investmants matunng in 90 days

11
13
2
20
26

B
13

13

21

25

20

14
16
16
168

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
(52334 786) (6 362 751) (50 914 608) (5073 133)
14948 718 11 754 620 14898212 11739792
4 062 089 . 4 062 089 a
376 469 {10 000) 176 469 (10 000)
1275 11475 1275 11475
8631 394 2 538 056 8631394 2 538 056
8 490 981 6 452 867 8321 194 6 452 309
(24 829 087) (1 D18 §22) {24 527 392) (334 923)
(40 652 947) 13 365 645 (39 155 368) 15323576
159 510 527 (122 716 344) 154 052 961 (122 716 344)
(120893 757) 39330365  (120805798) 30616 601
(240 108) (473 355) {240 108) (473 355)
(8845 417) 149 036 BEG 11952086 149 496 921
(15 356 918) (27 463 954) (15356 918) (27 463 954)
(282584 953) 356007820 (289 733076) 387 628 007
16 080 907 13 B16 546 14 440178 13 227 631
(292 972 668) 421 O3 A0S (284 846 043) 434 630 083
{10 231 207) (4 759 B33) {10 231 207) (4 758 833)
(303203 873) 417043776 (295077 250) 429879 250
(12 033 635) (19 149 B82) (11976 708) (18992 117)
(1 036 486) (463 5786) (1 036 486) (463 576)
507 233 10 000 507 233 10 000
(12 562 B88) (19 603 458) (12 505 961) (19 445 633)
. 6 360 725 . 2
(6208 689) (12 925 635) (6 208 689) (12 825 635)
(15 010 000) . {15 010 000) .
8 184 000 = - A
7 . {6 634 DBO)
(13034 689) {6564 910) (21218 689) (19 558 715)
(328 801 450) 390 B75408 (328 801 900) 390 873 842
526 B67 093 135903 251 526 867 093 135993 251
198 065 643 526 BB8 659 198 065193 526 867 093
303511974 380 350 6966 303 511524 380 358 400
5066455 112 563 AG3 5066455 117 563 643
(150 512 786) - (150 512 T86) -
40 000 000 a3 645 000 40 000 000 33 945 000
198 065 643 526 B68 650 198 065193 526 867 083
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Investrust Bank Pic (the “Bank™) and iis subsidiary, Zambian Home Loans Limied, are companies incorporated
and domiclied in Zambla The addresses of the Bank's registered office and principal place ol business are
digclosad in the report of the Directors on page 1. The principal activities of tha Bank and its- subsidiary {lhe
"Group”) ame described in the Report of the Directors on page 1,

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{IFRSs)

21 Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reported andior disclosed in the financial statements

In the current year, the Group has applied &8 number of amendments to IFRSs issusd by the Intamational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatanly sffactive for an accounting period that beging on or aftar
1 January 2015:

. Amendments to 1AS 18 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
These amendments have been applied retrospectively. The application of these amendments has had no
matorial impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in tha Group's consolidated fnancial
siatemants.

. Annual iImprovements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle and 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of amendments has had no impact on the disclosures o amounts mecognised n (he
Group's cansalldated financial stslomeants.

The adoplion of these new and revised Standards and Interpretalions did nol have a sanificant smpact on The
financial statements of the Group.
22 Standards and Interpretations in issue, not yel effective

Al the date of authorisation of thesa lnancial statemants, tho following relevant Standards and Interpretations
ware in issue but not yet effactive;

Effective date Standard, Amendment or interpretation
1 January 2018 IFRS U Financiel Msiroments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2000 introduced new requirements for the classification and)
measurement of financial assets IFRS 8 was subsequently amanded in Ociober 2010 10
|inciude requiraments: for the classification and measuremant of firancial llablities and for
deracognition, and in Novemnber 2013 to include the new equiremeants for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS § was issued (n July 2014 mainly (o in
Jab impalment requiremaents for flinancial assels and b) miled amendments to he
ciessification and measurement requirements by infroducing a ‘fair value through otha
comprehensive incoma’ (FVYTOCI) messurement cstegory for cerain simple  debl
|Instrumanis.

Pogsible Impact on the fnancial statemants.
The direciors of the Group anticipale thal the application of IFRS 8 in the fulure may have
a significant impact on amounts reporied in respect of the Growp's financial assets and
[financia liabilites (e.g. the Group's mvestments in redeemable notes that are cument!
clazsified as available-for-gale invesimonts will have 1o be maasured al falr value al the
lend of subsequent reporting periods, with changes [n the fair value being recognised in
profil or loss). However, it i not practcable to provide a reasonable astimate of the
af IFRS 9 until & detaded review has boan complated.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs)(CONTINUED)

22 Standards and Interpretations in issue, not yel effective (Continued)

Effective date

Istandard, Amendment or interpretation

1 January 2018

1 January 2016

ERS 15 Revanus from Conlracts will Cuslomers

IFRS 15 specifiss how and when an IFRS reporier will recognise mavenue as well
requiring such entities 1o provide users of financial statemants with more Infarmative,
relevant disclosures. The standanrd provides a single, principles based five-step model
be appliéd to all contracts wilh cusiomers, The core principle of IFRS 15 s that an &nll
|:II MCognisa venus 1o depict the ransfar of promised goods O SaNIces 10 customors
amount that reflects the consideration to which the enlity expects to be entithed
lexchangs for those goods of services, This core principle is deliverad in a five-siap mod
framework:

= jdaniily the contraclis) with & cuslomar

= identify the performance cbligatons in the coniract

= Datermine the ransacuon pnoa

= Allocals the transaction price o the perfarmancs obligations in (he contract

+ Recognise revenue when (or as) the enlity satisfies a parformance obligation

Possitle impact on the financinl stalemants;
The directors of the Group anficipate that the application of IFRS 15 in the future may
have a material Impact on the amounts reported and dlsclosures made n the Gn:up':
consolidated financial statermnents, However, it is nol practicable to provide a

lestimata of the effect of IFRS 15 untl the Group performs & delailed review

|Amendmants fo IFRS 11 Accouniing for Acowsitans of Interests w Joint Oparations

The amendmenis o IFRS 11 provide guidance on how (0 account for the acguisition of
jaint operation thal constifutes o business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
|Soedifically, the amendmants state that the relevant principles on accounting for busine
jcombinations in IFRS 3 and other standards {2.g. |AS 12 incoma Taxes regarding
racognition of deferred tanes 2t the time of acquisition and AS 36 Impaimant of
|regarding impairment lesting of & cash-genarating unil o which goodwill on acqulsition
a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. The same requirements should
lapplied to the formation of a joint operation d and only T an existing business
contribuled 1o the [oinl aparation by one of (he pariaes thal participate in tho joint oparation

A |oint oparator 8 plso requined 1o disdose the redevant information required by IFRS 3]
[and other standards for business combinations.

Pozsble Impact on the financial slafements,

[The directors of the group do not anticipate that the application of these amandmants o]
FRS 11 will heve a significant impact on the group's financial statements.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs)(CONTINUED)

22 Standards and interpretations In issue, not yel effective (Continued)

Effective date

Istandard, Amendment or interpretation

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 Jancary 2016

|Amendments fo IAS 16 and A5 38 Clanificalion of Accepiable Metheds of Depreciafion
Bnd Amariisation

[The amendments 1o 1AS 18 prohibil enfities from using a revenue-based depreciato
mathod for ilems of praperty, plant and eguipment. The amandments to IAS 38 introduce
rebuttable presumpiion that evenue is not an approprigte basis for amorisation of
intangible sssel This presumplion can only be rabutted in the lollowing two |
jcircumslances:

&) when tve intangibke assel i expressed a8 a maaslire of revenus; of

b} when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption of the economic benafits of]
the intangible asset 2re highly correlated

Possible impact on the financial statements:

The diraciors of the group believe that the straight-ine mathod is the most appropn
mathod (o reflect the consumption of economic benafits inherent in the respective assa
and accordingly, the directors of the group do not anticipate that the application of the

amendments to 1AS 16 and IAS 38 will have 3 materia! impacl an e group's finano
stalpmeanis,

lAmendments to |1AS 27: Equity Methoed in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments focus on separate financial statemants and aliow the use of the sguil
mathod In such slatements Specifically. the amendments allow an entity o account I'a
invesimants in subsidiories, jolnt ventures and associates in s separate finanol
|statemenis:

+ al cost,

= in accordance with IFRS 8 (or 1AS 39 for enblies that have not yel adopted IFRS 8), or

« using the equity method as described n WAS 28 Investments in Associates and Jol
[Veniums.,

Basicatly the same accounting must be applied o each category of investmants and t
mmendments also clarfies that when a parent ceases io be an Investment antity,
|pecomas an |nvestment entity, | should aceount for the change from the date when |
change in stotus occurs

Possable mpact on the financial stalerments;

[Tha directors of the group do nat anticipate that the application of these amendments tof
LAS ZT will have a significant impact on the group's financia!l statements

IAmendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 give some guidance on how io apply the concept of materiality
in practice.

« An entity shouwld nol reduce the undorstandability of its financlal stalemants by obscur
{erial information with immaterial information or by aggregating material iems that ha
differeni natures or funclions.

= An antity need nol provide a specific disclosure required by an IFRS if tha nfo
resulting from that disclosure is not matenal.

= I (he other comprebenslve nooma secion of & satamen! of profit or loss and othar
comprahensive income, tha amendmeants reqiire separate disclosures for the shano
other comprehensive income of associates and joinl ventures agcounted for using
equity methad that will not be reclassified subsaguently to proft or loss and thoses that wil
|be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss,

The directors of the group do not anticpate that the appleation of these amandments o]
IAS 1 will have o significant Impact on the group's financial statemants
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs){CONTINUED)

22 Standards and Interpratations in issus, not yeot effective (Continued)

Effective date

Standard, Amendment or interpretation

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

lAmendments fo :Fﬁs 10 and MEF.?E Sale or Contribution of Assels belween an invesior
lanid its AzSociate or Joint Verturg

[The amendments (o IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situabons where thore s a sale o
lcontribution of assels bebwsen an investor and its assodate or joinl venture. Spacificalty,
the amandmaents state that gaing o ingses resulling from the loss of sontrol of @ subsidia
|that does not contain @ business in @ trensachon with an associate or a joint vaniure that
sccounled for using the equity method, are recognised in the parenl's profil ar loss only
the axtent of the unmeiated investors’ (nterests in that associata or |oint venture. Simiardy,
|gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of nvesimenis retained In any forme
subsdiary (that has bacome an associate or a [oinl ventura that is accounted for using |
aquity mathod) to fasr valua ane recogrized in the former parent’'s profit or loss only to §
extent of the unrelated Investors' interests in the new associale or joint venlure

Posable Impact on the financial siaderments:

The director's of the gmoup anticipate that the application of these amendments fo IFRS 1
and LAS 28 may have an Impact on tha group's financial statements in fulune
should such ransactons anse

JAnnusl Improvements fo IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

[The Annual Improvemsnis o IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle nclude a number of amandmants
various [FRSs, which are summarised balow

The amendments 1o IFRS § introduce specific guidance m IFRS § for when an en
recinssifies an assel (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribuion
DWnErs (or vice versa) The amendments clarty that such a change should be conside
a5 & continuation of the orginal plan of disposal and hence mquirements set oul in IFRS
|regarding the change of sale plan do not apply. The amendments also clarifies f
jouidance for whan held-for-disiribution sccounting s disconimued.

[The amendments 1o IFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarfly whather a sp
contract is confinuing involvement in & transferred asset for the purpose of the dis
required in relation 1o transfared assels.

[The amendments fo IAS 19 darily that the rete used o disoount post-employment
obllgations should be determined by referance (o markat yeids 8! the end of the repor
iod on high guality corporate bonds. The assessment of the depth of 8 market for hi
lity corporate bonds should be al tha currency level (Le. the sama currency as |
efits ara (o be paid)] For currencies for which thene s no deep markat In such h
quality corporate bonds. the markel ylelds at the end of the reporiing pearod
lgovemmant bonds denominated in thal currency should be usad nstead

Pozsdie impact an the financial steemants;

[The dimactors of the Bank do not anticipate that fhe application of thesa amendmants wil
|have a matensl effect on the Bank's financial statemants.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounling policles adopled in the preparation of these consolidated financial stalements are
sat out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

31 Statement of compliance

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intarnational Financial Reporting
Standards.

32 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cos! basis excepl for financial
instruments and bulldings that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the
accounling policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration glven in exchange for goods and
SEMVICes.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation ltechnigue. In estimating the fair value of an assel or a
liability, the Group takes into account the charactenstics of the asset or liability f market participants would
lake those charactenslics inlo account when pricing the assel or liability al the measurement date. Falr value
for maasurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolldated financial stalements is determined on
such a basis, excepl for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing
iransactions thal are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements thal have some similarities to falr value
but are not fair value, such as value in use in |AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporling purposes, fakr value measurements are calegorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the Inputs to the fair value measuremeant in iis entirely, which are described as foflows:

. Lavel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assets or abilities that
the entily can access al the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are ochservabla for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

. Laval 3 inputs are unobsarvable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Directors believe together that the financial statements have appropriately been prepared on a going
concern basis as thay, logether with managemant have put in placa plans (o Improve the lollowing areas:

1. Bank profitability

. The Bank has slowed down the expansion of branches fo save liquidity.
. The Bank is undertaking a restructuring exercise which has been put in place by the new
maragemant appointed in 2015.

. Management has put in place specific business strategies 1o increase interest and other income and
reduce operating cosfs in order to improve the financial results in the medium to long term.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
32 Basis of preparation (Continued)
3 Key plans being implemented by the Board and Management (Continued)

{e)  Equity Capital raise and debt/credit lines

. Raise additional capital through a rights issue and augment it with debt capital and/or credit lines to
accelerate growth over the next five years,

Conclusion

With all the above initlatives, It |s the considered view of the Directors and Management that the bank will
continue as @ going concern in the foreseeable future and hence the preparation of the financial slatements
on a going concem basis is appropriaie.

3.3  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and entities (including
siructured entities) controlled by the Bank and its subs(diary. Control is achieved when the Bank:

. has power over the invesies;

. is exposed, or has rights, to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. hasg the abilily lo use iis power lo affect ifs returns.,

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes lo one or more of the three elements of conltrol listed above.

When the Bank has less than a majonty of the voting rights of an investes, il has power over the investes
when the voling nghts are sufficient to give it the practical abdily to direct the relevant activities of the investea
unilateraily. The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Bank's
voting rights In an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Bank's holding of voting rights relative lo the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders:;

* potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders or other parties;
. rights arising fram other contractual arrangements: and

Consolidation of the subsidiaries begins when the Bank obiains control over the subsidiaries and ceases
when the Bank loses control of the subsidiarles. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
of disposed of during the year are included in the consolidaled statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases o conirol
the subsidiaries.

Profil or loss and each component of other comprehensive incoma are attributed 1o the owners of the Bank
and o the non-controlling interests. Tolal comprehens|ve income of subsidiaries is attributed o the owners of
the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the noncontrofling interests having a
deficil balance.

When necessary, adjustmeants are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
polickes into ling with the Group's accounting policles.

All intragroup assats and liabilitles, aquity, income, expenses and cash flows relating fo transactions batwean
membars of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of preparation {Continued)

2. Capital Adequacy

. The Bank has since concluded arangements for a nghis issue to raise additional capital of K40
million Immediately o increase the caplital base.

. The Bank is in constant communication with the Bank of Zambia in relation to the status of the capital
adequacy of the bank.

. The Bank has been liquld over the past three years and as such will be able 1o meel its obligations
and continue to do so for the foreseeable huture,

. The Bank of Zambia liquidity returns attest to the fact that the bank is liquid.

3 Key plans being implemented by the Board and Management
{a) Restructuring and consolidation exercise

. Operate 8 sales oriented business model focusing primarily on clienl portfolio growth through
aggressive mobilization of retad and corporate liability products.

. Improve operational efficiencies in relation to organisational and operational structures to ensure
effician! resource ulilisation and quick turn around time on service dellvery.

. Cost cuiting and contalnment on operational expenses to reallze savings without necessarlly
compromising on operational effectiveness,

. Rollout of electronic delivery channels (o accelerate growth through capital efficient means. Marketing
of electronic banking products besides consolidating operations in existing branches.
(b} Deposit mobilization and diversification
. Incraase and diversify deposit portfolio in order to reduce high dependence on term deposits.

. Grow retall client portfolio through branch structure and marketing of complementary electronic
banking products,

. Agency banking platform - use this platform and a network of agenis to accelerate outreach lo retai
chiants that may not have access to the physical branch network,

. Target government beneficary institutions such as councils, hospitals , universities, colleges, district
and provincial offices, contraclors, etc.
(c) Credit underwriting and credit control

. Strengthened credit underwriting processes o ensure a quality loan book through enhanced risk
acoeptance crileria/policies.

. Recovenes drive on all pasl loans and advances enhancad 0 reduce lacilities (n arrears and non-
performing loans.

. Strengthening of the recoveries team to ensure adequate capacity and man power to follow up on all
non-parfarming loans,

(d) Increase non-interest income

. Treasury - aggressive marketing of treasury products. Foreign cumency trading, cash sales.
specialized treasury trade products, atc.

' Fees and commission income - Improved performance of all delvery channels such as ATMs and
electranic banking platform (mobile banking, intemnet banking. ete.).
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

33 Basis of consolidation {Continued)

3.3.1 Changes in the Group's ownership Interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidianes thal do not resull in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's Interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted o reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Arny differance betwean tha amount by which tha non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair valua of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Bank,

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised n profil or loss and is calculated
as the diference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any refained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assats (including goodwill), and liabillties of
the subsidiary and any non-confrolling interests. All amounts praviously recognised in other comprehansive
income in relation to that subsidiary (i.e: reclassified in profit or loss or transferred to another calegory of
equily as specified/parmittad by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary al the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on Initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under 1AS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment In an associate or a
jaint veniura.

34  Translation of Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
anvironmant in which the entity operates (the “unctional cumency”), The financial statements are presented
in Kwacha ("K™) which is the Group's functional currency.

(i) Transaction and balances

Foreign curmency transactions are fransiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assels and liabifities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognisad in profit or loss account. Monetary ltems carried al fair
value that are denominated In foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates pravailing al the dale when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated in forelgn currency are not relransialed.

Exchange diferances are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which thay arise.

35 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all inlerest bearing instruments, excepl for lhose classified as held for
trading or designated at fair value through profil and loss, are recognised within ‘interest incomea’ and "inlerest
expansa’ in the statemean! of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

The aeffective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of sliocating the interest income or inlerest expense over the relevanl period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
aexpecied life of the financial Instrument or, when appropriate. a shorter perlod to the net carrying amount of
the financial assel or financlal llability. The calculation of the effective Interes! rate Includes all fees paid or
received between parfies to the contract thal are an integral part of the effective interest rate, ransaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial assel or a group of similar financlal assels has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interast incoma |s recognised using the rate of inleres! thal was used to discount the fullre
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

16 Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided,
Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely fo be drawn down are deferred (togeiher with related direct
cosis) and recognised as an adjusiment o the affective inleres! rale on the loan. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been complated and the Bank hag retained no part of the
loan package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective inlerest rate as the other participants.
Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third
party - such as the arrangemen! of the acquisition of shares or other securities, or the purchase or sale of
business - are recognised on complation of the underlying transaction

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Loan commitment fees for loans thal ara likely to be drawn down are defarred (logether with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rale on the loan. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been complated and the Bank has retained no part of the
loan package for itself or has retained a parl at the same effective interest rate as the other paricipants.
Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or participaling In the negotiation of, a transaction for a third
party - such as the arangemeni of the acquisition of shares or other securities, or the purchase or sale of
businass - are recognisaed on complation of the underlying transaction.

3.7 Financial assets

Financial assats and kabilitles are recognised when the Group becomes a parly 1o the contraciual provisions
of the instruments. Financial assets and financial Habilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
cosis thal are directly attributed to acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial llabilities { other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financizl kabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costls
directly attributed 1o the acquistion of financial assets or financial iabilities at fair value through profit and loss
(FWTFL) are recognised immediately in the profit or loss. The Group classifies its financial assets into the
following categonies: financial assets at falr value through profit or loss; loans, advances and receivables; hald-
lo-malurily financial assels, and available-for-sale assets, The classificalion depends on the nalure and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initlal recognition, All regular way purchasas
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases
or sales ara purchases or sales of financial assets thal require delivery of aszets within the time frame
established by reguiation or convention in the marketplace. Managemen! determines the appropriate
ciassification of its financial assels at (nitial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprize balances with less than {hree months maturity from the date of
acquisition Including cash in hand and non-restricted balances with tha Bank of Zambia, treasury bills, loans
and advances 1o banks, amounts due from other banks and shorl-term government securities.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37 Financial assets (continued)

(i} Loans, advances and raceivables

Loans, advances and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fived or determinable payments that
are not guoted in an active markel Loans and recelvables (including bank balances and cash) are measured
al amortised cost using the effective Interest method. |ess any impaimmeant. Interas! income is recognised by
applying the effeclive interest rale, except for shorl ferm recevables when the recognition of interest would be
immateanal.

(i)  Held-to maturity

Hedd-to-maturity assets are non-darivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that management has the posifive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Were the Group to sall
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturily assets, the entire category would have to be reclassified
as available- for-sale. Subsequent 1o |nifial recognition, held to malurty invesiments ame measured at
amortisad cost using the aeffective interest rate method less any impairment.

{iv) Available-Tor-sale

AFS financial gssats are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are nol classified as (3) loans
and recelvables, (b) hald-lo-maturity Investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

The Group also has investments in unlisted shares that are not raded in an acllve market bul thal are also
classified as AFS financial assels and slaled al fair value at the end of each reporting period (because the
directors conslder thal fair value can be reliably measured). Changes in the camying amount of AFS monetary
financial essels relating to changes in foreign cumency rates (see balow), interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or loss, Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assels are recognised in other comprehansive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve, When the investment is
dispased of or s determined lo be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investiments revaluation resarve is reclassified 1o profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's nght to receive the
dividands is established,

AFS equity investmants that do nol have a quoted market price In an active markel and whose fair value
cannol be reliably measured and dervatives thal are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each

reporting penod
3.8 Employee benefits

Tha Group and all ils employses contribule to the National Pension Schams, which iz a defined contribulion
scheme. A defined contibution plan is a retirement benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed
coniributions into a separaie enfity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations lo pay further
contributions if the fund does nol hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benehils relating 1o employee
service in the current and prior perods. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution pension plan are
recognized as an employes benafil axpanse.

Short-larm benefits, such as salaries, paid absences, and other benefits, are accounted for on an accruals
basis over the period which employees have provided services in the year, Bonuses are recognised to the
exient that the Group has a present obligation to its employees hatl can be measured reliably

All expanses related 1o employes benefiis are recognised in the statemeants of comprehensive incoma in staff
benefil expenses.




Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.9 Eamings per share

The calculation of basic eamings per share @ based on the profit atinbutable to equity holders and the number
of basic weighted average number of shares excluding own shares held in employves benefits trusis, currently
not vested. When calculating the diuted samings per shara, the profit atiributable {o equity holders s adjusted
for the conversion of oulstanding options Into shares within cerlain subsidiary entities, The weaighted average
number of ordinary shares excluding own shares held in employes banefil trusts. cumently not vested, is
adjusted for the effects of all diutive potential ordinary shares.

310 Impairment of financial assets
] Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there |s objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets |s impaired and impaimant
inssas are incurmed only i there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more avents that
occurred after the initial recognition of the assel (a loss event’) and Lhat loss evenl (of events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The criterfa that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impatment loss inciude:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor: or
. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in Interest or principal repaymants; or

L ihe lender, Tor economic or legal reasons relaling 1o the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the
bormower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider; or

. it becomes probable thal the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

* the disappearance of an acthva market for that financial assel becausa of financlal difficulties; or

* obsarvable data indicaling thal there s a measurable decrease in the estimated fulure cash Nows from
a portfolio of financial assels since the Inial recognition of those assels, although the decrease
cannot yal be identified with the Individual financial assals in the portfalio, including:

(a) adverse changes in the payment stalus of bormawers in the portfollo; and
(b} national or local economic conditions that corelate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The estimated period beltween a loss ocourring and its identification is determined by management for each
identified portfolio. In general, the periods usad vary batwesn 3 months and 6 months.

The Group first assesses whether object/ve evidence of impairment exists individually for financlal assels thal
are Individually significant, and ndividually or collectively for financial assels thal are nol (ndividually
significant, If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairmenl exists for an individually
assessed financial assel, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in & group of financizl assets with
similar credil risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairmenl. Assets thal are Individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment |ass |8 or continues to be recognised are not Included In
4 colleclive assessment of impalrment,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financlal assets camied st amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assel's carrying amounl and the
present valua of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have nat been incurred)
discounted at the financial instrument's original effective Inlerest rale. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowsnoa account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit and
loss account. If 2 loan or held-io-matunty assel has a2 variable interest rate, the dizscount rate for measuring
any impalrment loss is the current effective interest rale delermined wunder the conlracl As a praclical
expedient, the Group may measure fmpairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimaled fulure cash flows of a collalersllsed financial assel
reflacts the cash flows thal may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling tha collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)

310 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Assels carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For the purposes of a collactive evaluation of impairment, financlal assels are grouped on the basis of similar
credil risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group's grading procass thal considers asset lype, industry,
geographical location, coliateral type, past-due stalus and olhar relavant factors). Those characteristics are
relevant to the astimation of future cash flows for groups of such assels by being indicative of the deblors’
ability o pay all amounls due according o the contraclual lerms of the assets being evaluated.

Futura cash flows in & group of financial assetls that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash lows of the assets in the group and hisloncal loss expet@nca for assals with
credit risk characleristics similar 1o those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
currenl observable data to reflect the effects of curren! conditions thal did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience 8 based and o remove the effeclts of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist cumantty.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the redated provision for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision
for loan Impalment in profit or loas

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvemant in the debtor's
credit rafing), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significan or prolonged decling in the fair
value of the securily balow its cost is considered in delermining whether the assels are impaired. If any such
evidence ewists for avaiable-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between lhe acguisition cost and the cument fair value, jess any impairment loss on that financial assel
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profil or loss. Impairment
losses recognised In profit or kess on equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss account. If, ina
subsequent period, the Tair value of a debl instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairmenl loss & reversed through profit or loss account.

(i) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject o colleclive impairment assessment or individually signilicant and whose lerms
have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past dua bul are treated as new loans. In subsaquent
years, the renegoliated terms apply in determining whather the asset is considerad 10 be past due.

3.11  Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to tha cash flows from the asset
expira, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assal to another entity. i the Group naeither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownarship and confinues to control the mansferred asset, the Group recognises its retained inlerest in the
asset and an associated liabikty for amounts it may have lo pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transfamed financial asset, the Group confinues to recognise the financial assat
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recelved,

On derecognition of a financlal asset in its entirely, the difference between the asset’s carmying amount and the
sum of the consideration receved and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in eguity is recognised in profil o loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11  Dermcognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial assel ather than in s anlirely (e.g. when the Group retains an oplion 1o
repurchase par of a transfarred assel). the Group aliocates the previous camrying amount of the financial
assel belween the partl it conlinues 1o recognise under continuing involvement, and the parl it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relalive fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between lhe carrying amount allocaled to the part that is ne longer recognised and the sum of the
considerallon recelved for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated lo it that
had been recognised in other comprahensiva intome is recognised n profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had bean recognised In other comprehensive incoma s allocated between the part that continues 1o be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on thae basis of the relative fair values of those pans,

312 Property and equipment
] Recognition and Measurements

All property and equipment except buildings is stated at historical cost. ltems of property and equipmant are
subsequently measured al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses and
propary is subsequantly measured at fair value less accumulated depraciation

Buildings are staled in the siatement of financial position al their revalued amounts, belng the fair value al the
date of revaluation, less any subseguen! sccumulated depreciation and subsequenl impalment lossas. It s
the Groups policy to perform revaluations wilh regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
malerially from those that would be determined using fair values al the end of each reporting period. The
revaluation differances are crediled lo other comprehensive income and accumulated |n equily under the
heading "revalualion surplus” unless it represents the reversal of a revaluation decrease previously recognized
as an expense, in which case || should be recognized as income. A decrease as a result of a revaluatlon is
recognized as an expanse o the exlent thal it exceeds any amount previousty credited o the revaluation
suplus relaling o the Same assel

When a revalued assel is dispesed off, any revaluation surplus is transferred directly to retalned sarmings.

Cost includes expenditure that is direclly attributabie to the acquisition of the asset. The cost includes the cost
of matesials and direct lnbour, any other costs directly altributable o bringing the assels 1o a working condition
for their intended use. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the ralated equipment is
capitalized as party of thal equipment.

When parts of an llem of propenty, and equipment have different useful lives, they are componantized as
separate items of property, and eguipmeant.

Capital work in progress relates 1o itams of property, and equipment that are under consiruclion and are yet o
be commissioned for use. Work in progress is measured al the cost incurred in relation 1o the construction up
to the reporting date.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, and equipment is determined by comparing the proceads
from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, and equipment, and is recognized net within other
operating income.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of repiacing a component of an |tem of propary, and equipmeant is recognized in the camying amount
af the am If it is probable that the fulure economic banefits ambodiad within the componant will flow 1o the
Group and itz cost can be measured reliably, The camying amount of the replaced component is
derecognized. The cosls of the day-to-day sarvicing of proparty, and eguipment are recognized In profit or
Ioss as incurmed.

(ili)  Depreciation

Depraciation |s based on the cost of the assel less (i residug value. Components of individual assels are
assessed and f a component has a useful Wife that s different from the remander of that asset, that
componant is depracialed separalely,
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
312  Property and equipment (Continued)

Capital work In progress s not depreciated.

Depraciation Is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
componant of an item of property, and equipment,

Tha astimated usaful lives are as follows;

Leasehold buildings 80 years

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years

Leasshold improvements 10 years or over life of the leasea
Equipment and motor vahicles 4 years

Automalic Teller Machines 10 years

Generator sals 10 years

Intangibie assets 5 years

The assats’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date,

The Group assesses al each reporiing dale whether thare (s any indicafion that any llem of property and
equipment is impaired. If any such indlcation exists, the Group eslimates the recoverable amount of the
relavant assals. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assael's carrying amount
exceads its recoverable amount The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs o
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing Impairment. assels are Groupead al the lowest leveis for
which there are separalely idenlifiable cash flows (cash-generating units),

313 Roevaluation reserve

The surplus arising on revalualion of tangible assets is crediled lo a non-distribulable reserve. Decreases thal
offsel previous revaluations of the same assel are charged agains! the revaluation reserve, All other
decreases are charged to the slatemanl of comprehensive income. Each year the difference belween
deprecialion based on the revalued carrying amount of the assel (the depreciation charged to the statemenl of
comprehensive income) and depreciabion based on the assel's onginal cost is ransferred from the revaluation
reserve (o revenue reserves. On disposal of revalued assels, amounts in the revaluation resarve relating to
that asset are transferred o revenue resemnves

314 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax curently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as repored in
profit ar loss because it excludes ilems of moome or expense (hal are [axable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes lems thal are never laxable or deductible. The Group's liability for currént tax is calculated
using tax ratles thal have been enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax |s recognised on differences belween lhe carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statemeants and the corresponding lax bases used in the compulation of tsxable profit. Deferred tax
llabilities are generally recognised for all laxable temporary differences and deferred (ax assels are recognised
lo the extent that it is probable thal taxable profitz will be available against which deductible temiporary
differences can be ulilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exient that it
is no longer probable thal sufficient taxable prafits will be avaltable 1o allow all or parl of the assel o be
recoversd.

Deferred tax is cafculated at the tax rates that are expectad o apply in the period when the liability |s settled or
the assel realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to lems charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the defermed tax is also dealt with in equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Daferred lax assets and kabiliies are offsal when there is a legally enforceable right to set off cumant tax
assats against curmant tax kabilities and whan they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group Intends to selle its current tax assets and liabiliteés on a net basis.

315 Mon-current assets held for sale

Mon-currenl assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if thelr camying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition s regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) &5 available for immediate sale in lis present condition subject
only to larms thal are usual and cuslomary for sales of such assel (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expectad (o qualify for recognition as
a completed sala within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured al the lower of thelr
pravious carmying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell.

Any impairmen| loss on a disposal group |s allocated to remaining assels and habilities, Impalrment losses on
initial classification as heid for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurements are recognized in
profit or loss.

318 Borrowings

Borowings are recognised initially a1 falr value, being their issue proceeds (falr value of consideration
received) net of transaction cosis |ncurred. Borowings are subsequently sialed at amortised cosl; any
differance between procesds net of fransaction cosls and the redemption value s recogrised In profit or loss
aver the period of the borrowings using the effective interest mathod,

317 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributabde to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assels, which
are assels that necessanly lake a substantial period of time o gel ready for thelr inlended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such lime as the assels are substantially ready for their intended use
of sale.

All ather bomowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incumad.

3.18  Financial liabilities and equity
(i) Classification as debt or aquity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either linancial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contraciual agreement

(1) Financial liabilities

Financial liabillties are classified as bormowed funds, other payables, other liabiliies and amounts dus o
relatad parties,

Bormmowed lunds, olher payables and other liabilities are initially maasured al lair valus and are subsegUently
measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method (5 a method of calculating the amaortised cost of a financial Hability and of
allacating interast expense over the relevant penod. The effective interest rate s the rale that exactly
discounts estimated fulure cash paymenis through the expected life of the financial llabllity, or, whera
appropriate, a shorter period.

(iiif  Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity Instruments are recorded al proceeds recetved, net of direct issue costs.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.18  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

{lv)  Derecognition of financial liabllities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial lability derecognised
and the consideration pald and payable s recognised in profit or loss.

3.19  Offsetting

Financial assels and liabililies are offsel and the net amount reported in the statement of financia! position
when there is a legally enforceable right to sel off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seltle on
a net basis, or realise the assel and settle the liability simultanecusly.

3.20 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securiies sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are classified in the financial statements as
pledged assets when the transferes has the right by contract or custom (o sell or re-pledge the collateral; the
counterparty liability is included in amounts due to other banks, deposits from banks, other deposits or
depasits due to custormers, as appropnate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse rapos’)
are recorded as loans and advances o olher banks or customers, as appropriale. The diference betwesn
sale and repurchasa price is treated as inlerest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the affective
interest method, Securities lent o counterparties are also retainad in the financial statements.

3.21 Share capital

Ordinary shares are ciassified as ‘share capital’ in eguity, Any premium received over and above the par value
of the shares is classified as ‘shane premium’ in equity.

3.22 Dividends payable

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in ithe period in which they are declared. Proposed
dividends ara not recognisad as a kability untll declared.

3.23  Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as frustees and In other fidudary capacities that resull in the holding or piacing of
agsals on behall of indlviduals, trusts, retirament baneflt plans and other Institutions. Thesa assets and Incomea
arising thereon are excludad from these financial statements, as they are not assels of the Group,

324 Acceptances and letters of credit

Acceptances and letters of credil are accounted for as off-statement of financial position transactions and
disclosed a5 contingent liabilibes.

325 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a prasent legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past
avents; it is mora likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has besn rellably estimated. The amount recognised as a provision s the besi estimate of the
consideration required (o sallle the presant obiligation al the end of the reporting penod, laking into account the
risks and uncertainties sumounding the obligation.

The Group recognises no provisions for future operating losses. Where thera are a number of similar
obligations, the likefihood that an outfiow will be required in setllement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision |s recognised even if the likelhood of an outllow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be small
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
325 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the prasent valua of the expenditures expecied 1o be required to sefils the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific o the abligation.

3.26 Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whanaver the terms of the leasa transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i The Group as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's
nel investment in the leases. Finance lease income |5 allocated 10 accounting penods so as o reflect a
constant perodic rate of return on the Group's net Invesimeant outstanding in respect of the leaseas

Rental income from operaling leases is recognised on a siraighl-line basis over he term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and armanging an operating lease are added to the carying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Lesses

Assets held under finance leasas are Initially recognised as assets of the Group al thelr fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding
liability o the lessor is Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
abligation,

Lease payments are apportioned betwaen finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as o
achiave a constant rate of inferest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediataly in profil or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group's general policy on bomowing costs (see nole 3.13 balow).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expeanses in the perods in which they are incurred,

Cperating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm, excepl
where anather systemalic basis is more representalive of the time patiern in which economic benefils from the
lsasad asset are consumed, Contingent rentals arising under operaling leases are recognised as an expanse
in the period in which they are incumed.

In the avant that lease incentives are received to anler Into operating leasas, such incentives are recognised
as a |lability. The aggregate benaefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a stralght-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

327  Intangible asset - Computer software
Computer software is slated al cost, less amortisation and provisions for impairment, if any,

The dentifiable and directly associaled external and internal costs of acguiring and developing software are
capitalised where the software i controlied by the Group, and where |l is probable that fulure economic
benefits that exceed its cost will flow from its use over more than one year. Cosls associaled with maintaining
software are recognised as an expense when Incurred,

3.28 Segment reporting

Following the management approach of IFRS 8, operating segments are reporied n accordance with the
internal reporting provided to the Execulive Managemeni Committes (the chiel operating decision-maker),
which is responsible for allocating resources to the reportable segments and assesses iis performance. All
oparating segments usad by the Group meat the dafinition of a reportable segmant under IFRS 8.
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1.28 Segmaent reporting (Continued)
The Group has two main business segmenis:

*  Retail banking: Incorporating private banking services, private customar current accounts, savings,
deposits, investment savings products, safe custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and
marigages,

* Corporate banking: Incorporating direct debit facilities, current accounts, depaosits, overdrafts, loans
and other credit facilities and {oreign cumancy.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the direclors are reguired to maka judgements, estimales
and assumptions aboul the carmying amounts of assets and liabllites that ara not readily apparent from other
sources, The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered 1o be relevanl. Aclual results may differ from thase astimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basls. Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the penod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, aparl from those involving estimations, that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognisad in the financial statements.

L] Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews Its loan portfolios to assess impairment at leas! on & quarerly basis. In delermining
whather an mpairment loss should be recorded in the Income statement, the Group makes judgements as o
whether there Is any observable data indicating thal there is a measurabie decrease in the estimaled fulure
cash flows from a portfolio of loans bafore a decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This ewvidence may Include obiservable dala indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment
stalus of borrowers in @ group, or local economic conditions thal corelate with defaulls on assels in thal
group, Manageman! uses eslimales based on hislorical |loss experience for assels with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the porifolio when scheduling future
cash fMlows. The mathodology and assumptions used for aslimating both the amount and the timing of future
cash fiows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences belween |oss estimates and actual loss
experience.

(i) Held to maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance on IAS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity, This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investmants to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these Invesiments to maturity other than for specific cicumstances - for
example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity - it will be required to reclassily the anlira class as
available for sale. The Direclors have reviewed the Group’s held to maturity financial assets in light of its
capital mainienance and liquidity requirements and have confirmed the Group’s positive infention and ability to
hold those assets to maturnty.

(i) Income taxes

Tha Group Is subject lo income taxes in Zambia. Thare are many transactions and caleulations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncerain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises Eabilifies
for anticipated tax audit issues basad on estimates of whether additional taxes will be dus, Whare the final lax
outcome of these mattars is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determanation is mada.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
{CONTINUED)

{iv) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As descnbed al 3.12 above, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of
each reporting period. During the current year, there were no adjustmeants made lo the uselul lives of property, plant and
equipment.

{v) Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not guoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
lechmigues. Whare valuation lachnigues (for example, models) are vsed (o determine falr values, (hey ane validaled and
perindically reviewad by qualified personnel independent of the arsa that created them, Al models are cerlified before
they are used, and models are calibrated io ensure thal outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To
the extent practicable, models use only cobsorvable data. However, areas such as credit risk (both own and
counlerparty), volalilities and correlations require managemeant 1o make sslimales. Changes In assumplions aboul these
factors could affect tha reported fair valus of financial instruments.

{vi)  Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policles and practices to mitigate credit sk, The mosl traditional of these is the taking of
secunty for funds advanced, which Is commaon practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.

In addition, in order to minimisa the credil loss the Bank will seek additonal collateral from the counterparny as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual inans and advances.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances s determined by the nature of the
instrument. Debl securilies, reasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of assal backed
sacurities and similar instruments, which ame sacured by portfolios of financial instruments.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's busingss involves taking on risks in a targeled manner and managing them professionally. The core
functions of tha Group's nsk managemant are 1o identify all key risks for the enlity, measure these risks, manags the risk
positions and delermine capial allocations. The Board of Direclors regulary reviews its sk management policles and
systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practica.

The Group's aim i o achieve an appropriale batance between risk and refum and minimise potantial adverse affects on
the entily's financial performance. The Group defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be
caused by intemal or external factors,

Risk manageman is camied oul by the Risk Managemeant depariment under policies approved by the Board of Directors
through a Board Risk Management sub-committee which identifies. evaluaies and hedges financial nsks in close co-
operation with the concemed operating units of the Group. The Board provides written principlea for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange nisk, interest rate risk and
credil risk. In addition, the Interna! Audt department is responsible for the independent review of risk management and
the contral environment.

The risks ansing from financial instrumants to which the Group I8 exposed are financial risks, which includes credil sk,
liquidity risk, market risk (which are discussed below} and oparational rigk.

5.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Group's customers, clients or market counterparties fai
to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Group, Credil risk arlses mainly from commercial and consumer loans and
advances, and loan commilments ansing from such lending actvities, buil can also arse from credit enhancement
provided, such as financial guarantees, ietiers of credit, andorsaments and acceplances.,

The Group is also exposed to othar credit risks arising from imvestments in debt securities and other exposures arnsing
from s trading activiies (Irading exposures’). dervalives and setilement balances with markel counterparties and
reverse repurchase loans.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Group's business; management tharefore carefully manages its exposure to
credit risk. The credit risk management and control are centralised in a credil risk managamen! team, which reports o the
Board Risk Management commiiles and Loans review commitles once avery quarter,
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5, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
51  Credit risk (Continued)

51.1  Credit risk management

(a)  Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group struclures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing imits on the amount of risk accepted In
relation lo one bormower, or groups of borrowers, and lo geographical and industry segmenis, Such risks are
monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when consldered necessary.
Limits on the level of credit risk by product and by Industry sector are approved quartery by the Board of
Directors,

The exposure to any one borrgwer including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covaring on- and off-balance
sheet exposures, and dally defivery risk limits in relalion to trading items. Aclual exposures against limits are
monitored daily, Exposure 1o credil risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and
potential borrowers 1o meet interast and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate.

The exposure to any one bomower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on and off-
statemant of financial position exposures.

For exampia:
1) There is a single name credil exposure limit of 25% of the regulatory capital,

2) Clean and secured counterparty limits apply for money market operations
conducted by the Treasury Department.

Some specific control and mitigation measures are oullined below:
(i Collateral
The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credil risk. The most traditional of these is the
laking of security for funds advanced, which |s common practice. The Group implements guidelines on the
accaptabllity of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans. and
advances are;

* Mortgages over residential properties;

* Charges over business assels such as premises, invantory and accounis receivable;

* Charges over financial instrumenis such as debt instrumenis;

* Cash cover: and

* Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entitles are generally secured. Certain

personal credit facllites are genarally unsecured.

In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparly as
soon as iImpalmaent indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

Collaleral held as security for financial assels olther than loans and advances is determined by the nature of tha
instrument. Debl securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the excepfion of assal
backed securities and similar instruments. which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

51 Credit risk (Continued)
5.1.1 Credit risk management (Continued)

(a) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(i) Financial covenanis (for Credit-related commitmenis and loan books)

The pnmary purpose of these instruments & o ensure that funds are available fo a cusiomer as required.
Guaraniees and standby letters of credit carry the same credil risk as loans. Documentary and commercial
letters of cradit - which are written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party lo
draw drafis on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralised by the
underlying shipment of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan,

Commitments to extend credil represant unused portions of authorizations (o extend credil in the form of Ioans,
guaraniees or letters of credit. With respect lo credit risk on commitments o extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount aqual lo the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of
loss is less than the total unused commilments, as most commitments o extend credil are conltingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group monitors tha term to maturity of credit commitments
because longer term commitmants genefally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-ferm commitments.

(b) Lending limit

Credit risk exposure is managed as part of overall lending mits with customers, togaether with potential exposures
from markel movemenls,

Settlemant risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash or secunties is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt In cash or securities, Dally setilement |imils are established for each counterparty to cover
the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the Group's market transacfions on any single day

(e) Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of (hese instruments i o ensure thal funds are avallable o a customer as required
Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represenl imevocable assurances thal the Group will make
payments in the event thal a customear cannot meat its obiigations to third paries, carry the same credit nsk as
loans. Documentary and commaercial letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the Group on behalfl of a
customer authorsing a third parly to draw drafts on the Group up to a stipulsted amount under specific terms and
condilions, are collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less

risk than a direct borrowing.

Commitments lo extend credit represent unusad porfions of authorisations to extend ¢redit in the form of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount agual to the tolal unused commitments. However, tha likely amount of
loss is less than the tofal unused commiiments, as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
cuslomers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term o malturity of credit commitments
becausa longer-arm commitments genarally have a greater degree of cradil risk than shorer-lerm commitments.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
52  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet |Is obligations when they fall due as a resull of cuslomer
deposits being withdrawn, cash requiremanis from confractual commitments, or other cash outflows, such as debt
maturiies. Such outflows would deplele available cash resources for cllenl lending, trading activities and
Investments, In extreme clreumstances, lack of lguidity could result in reductions In the statement of financial
position and sales of assels, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments. The risk that the Bank will be
unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of institution-specific and
markel-wide avents including, but not imited (o, credit events, marger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and
natural disasters.

{a)  Liquidity risk management process

The Bank's liquidity management process is monitored on a dally basis by the Bank's Treasury Department in
cofisultation with the Financial Controller and the Managing Director and controlied as far as possible by ensuring
that mismaiches between maturing deposit kabilities and investments of these funds are kept to a8 minimum,
Consuliations includes;

. Day-io-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requiremants can be met. This
includes replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Bank maintains an
active presence in the monay markels o enable this (o happen;

# Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets thal can easily be |lquidated as protection against any
unforaseen interruption to cash flow,

- Monitoring the liquidity ratios of the stalement of financial position against intemal and regulatory
requirements; and

. Managing the concentralion and profile of debit maturities.

Manitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week and manth
respeclively, as lhese are key periods for liquidity managemenl. The staring point for those projections is an
analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial Babilittes and the expected collection date of the financial assets.
Tabla 7 and 8 shows the nal liquidity gaps al 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively,

{b)  Assets held for managing liquidity risk

The Bank holds a diversified portfolio of cash and high-quality highly-liquid securities lo support payment
obligations and contingent funding in a siressed market environment. The Bank's assels held for managing liquidity
risk comprize:

. Cash and balances with the central bank;

. Cenrificates of deposit;

. Gavernmant bonds and other securilies thal are readily acceptable In repurchase agreements with tha
cantral bank; and

. Secondary sources of liquidity in the form of highly liguid instrumants in the trading portfolios
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

5.2

{c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk maturity analysis (Continued)

The amounts in the table have been compiled as follows,

Type of financial Instruments Basis on which amounts are complled

Mon-derivative financial liabilities and Undiscounted cash flows, which include estimated interest

financial assets payments

|ssued financial guarantes contracts, and Earliest possible contractual maturity. For issued financial

unrecognised loan commilmeants guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantes
s allocated to the earllest period in which the guarantees
could be called,

The Bank's expected cash flows on some The Bank's expected cash flows on some financial assets

financial assets and financial liabilites vary and financial liabilities vary significantly from the contractual

significantly from the contractual cash flows. cash flows. The principal differences are as follows:

* Demand deposits from customers are expected to remain stable or increase: and
* unrecognised loan commitments are nol all expected Lo be drawn down immediately,

As part of the management of liquidity risk ansing from financial liabilities, the Bank holds liquid assets
comprising cash and cash equivalenis and debl securities which can be readily sold to meet liquidity
requirements. In addition, the Bank maintains agreed lines of credit with other banks and holds
unencumberaed assets eligible for use as collateral with central banks (these amounts are referred to as the
'Group's liquidity reservas'),

Investru ;ﬂu ?' 4
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

54

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk

Markel risk is the risk thal changes in market prices, which include currency exchange rales and Interest rates, will
affect the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. Market risk arises from open posilions in interest
rates and foreign cumrencies, both of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
accepiable fimits, while optimising the return an nisk. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the

The Treasury Deparment in consultation with the Managing Direclor, Financial Controller and Head - Operations
reviews the foreign exchange buying and selling rates on a daily basis and a decision is made as lo whether to hold

long or short positions, within the limits stipulated by Bank of Zambia,

Similarly the same composition of individuals also monitors the Interest rates on a weekly basis and adjusiments are
made on interest chargeable on loans and advances, The monitoring process pays atlention to Treasury Bill rates and
bass rates changas announced by other Banks.

The table below sets out the allocation of assets and liabilities subject to market risk between trading and non-trading
portfolios.

31 December 2015

Market risk measure
Table 9 GROUP BANK
Non-trading Non-trading
Assets subject to market risk Carrying amount portfolic Carrying amount portfolio
Cash and cash equivalents 158 065 643 158 065 643 158 065 193 158 065 193
Held to maturity Investments 213 038197 213 038 187 218 494 197 218 494 197
Loans and advances to customers 584 DB3 914 584 063 914 562 976 T21 562 976 721
855 167 754 955 167 754 839 536 11 939 536 111
Liabilities subject to market risk
Customer deposits 1108 233 480 1108 233 480 1112 375 152 1112375152
Borrowings 28 B72 406 28 872 406 20 688 406 20 688 406
1137 105 886 1137 105 886 1 133 063 558 1133 063 558

31 December 2014

Assets subject to market risk
Cash and cash equivalenis 492 923 659 492 923 658 492 922 093 492 8922 093
Heild to maturity Investments 466 402 158 A66 492 158 366 492 158 366 492 158
Loans and advances to customers 568 352 560 568 352 560 567 893 083 567 893 083
Other assels 2491 2491 2491 24M
1427 770 BG8 1427 770 B6A 1427 308 825 1427 309 825
Liabilities subject to market risk
Customer deposits 1390 818 433 1390 818 433 1402 108 228 1 402 108 228
Debt securities in [ssue 15010 000 15 010 000 15010 000 15 010 000
Borrowings 18 265 T01 18 265 701 18 265 701 18 265 701
Other liabilities 49 B46 181 49 646 161 49 646 161 49 646 161
1473 740 295 1473 740 295 1 485 030 080 1 485 030 080
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
5.5  Strategic risk

The Bank's strategic plan is comprehensive in all aspects with particular emphasis on compliance with legal
and market conditions and Senior Managemeni effectively communicates the plan to all staff levels and
allocates resources in ling with the laid down objectives.

5.6 Regulatory risk

Any risks associated with the reputation of the Bank are dealt with as soon as they are perceived. This
includes matters arising from regulatery reviews such as Bank of Zambia inspections and are promptly and
adequately deall with as they arise. Customer complamts are thoroughly Investigated and resolved 1o the
satisfaction of both the Bank and the customer.

57 Legal risk

The Bank ensures thal all prudential requirements of the Bank of Zambia and the relevant regulations in the

Laws of Zambia are complied with without exception. The risk of non-compliance could be delrimental to the
operations of the Bank.

5.8  Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The Bank of Zambia sets limits on the level of exposure by currency
and in aggregate for both ovemight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily,

59  Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on |is

financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limils on the level of exposure by currency and in total for
both ovemight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily.

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December
2015 and 2014, Included in the table are the Bank's financial instruments, calegorised by currency,

Investru ;ﬂu ?' ?
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
511 Fair value of financial assets and llabillties

Thia (el value of hald-to-rmatarity nvestment secunities 8?31 December 2015 = sstmated ol K214.9 million (2074: K366.5 milion ], The fair values
of the Bank's other financial assets and liabikties spproximate the eIpecive carmyng amounts, due o the genarally shor periods to contractusl re-
pricing or maturity dates ps sef oul abova. Fayr values aro based on discountad cash fows using @ discount rotes based upon (he wald rales o
similar financial assets at the Statement of Financisl Position date

Falr value higrarchy

IFRE 13 spacifies a hiarmrchy of valuation lechnigues basod an whathes the inpuls i those valuatons lechnigues ane obsarvable or unobseralils.
Obsenvable inputs reflect market data obtpined from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank market assumptions. The two fypes
of Inputs hawve created the follinwing fai salus hlemechy:

* Lol 1 — Quoted prices (unadjested) in active markets lor dantcal assets or labilities. This level inchudos Estad squily securities and dabt
instruments on exchanges (for exampie, Lusaka Stock Exchangel

- Leved 2 < inputs olher ihan quoted prices inciuded within Lewal 1 Sat are observalde for he: assol or [abeily, sither dirpcly (Ihat |, &3 prces)
or ndirgclly {(hot m, darived from prices).

* Lavetd 3 = inputs for tha asael of (isblity that am not based on observable market data (unobservabie nputa). This kevel ncludes equity
investrmiends and dabl mstrements wilh significant unobsenvabie componants.

This Merarchy requires the use of observable marked dala when aveilable. The Bank consicers relevant and obsenvable marks! pnoes in s
valusions whare possible

{i}y Falr value of the Bank's financial nssets and financial liabilitios that are measured ot fair value on a recurring basis

Financial asso! Fair value  [Valuation schniques Group
Bank
2015 2014 2016 2014
K K K K
Farsign Currency
forward contracts Level 1 Markst approach 2100263 (B5000) 2108263 165 0oo)|
|uisted equity investments  Level 1 Market appmach IBATE? ITIOIT 369 7ER It 037

Thera ware no transies betwean Leavel 1 and 2 in the year,

mvestoge, | 85
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

512
()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Capital management ({Continued)

Computation of capital position
Table 15

| Primary (Tier 1) Capital

(a) Paicl-up common shares

(b} Ehgibte preferred shares

(e) Contributed surplus

(d) Retained earnings

() General reserves

(f) Statutory resarves

(g} Minonty interests (common shareholdears’ equity)

(h) Sub-total

Less:

(i) Goodwill and ather intangible assals

(i} Invesimenis in unconsolidated subsidianes  and

assnciales

(k) Lending of @ capital nalure to subsidiares and

associales

(1) Hodding of ather banks’ or financial institutions” capital

nsEtrumeants

(m) Assets pladged 1o securas liabilties

I Primary (Tier 1) Capital

Sub-total (A) (lems | to m)

Other adjustments

Provisions

Assets of ittle or no realizable valus - spedily details or
use separals (& if nocessary:

Other adjustments (specify)

(n} Sub<otal (B) - (Subtotsl A above + Other
adjustments)

(o) Total primary capital (h - n)

I Secondary (Tier 2) Capital

(3} Eligible preferred shares (Reguiations 13 and 17)
(b} Etigible subordinated term debt {Regulation 17 (b))

{c) ERgible loan stock/capital (Regulation 17(b)
(d} Revaluation raserves (Regulation 17 (a))
Maximum ks 40% of revaiualion res.

{a) Othar (Regulation (17 (c)). Speclly
(f} Total secondary capital

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
4 665 231 4 8665 231 4 665 231 4 665 231
26 726 530 26 726 530 26 726 530 26 726 530
{27 695 116) 27 B0 T43 (23 57T 672) 27 744 618
13627 477 10 123 452 10 890 558 10123 482
4 665 231 4 B65 231 4 665 231 4 665 231
21 989 353 732681227 23 369 879 73925102
- - 6909 DAO -
- . 6 509 080 -
- - & 909 080 =
21 989 353 73 261 22T 16 460 799 73 825 102
- 3002000 - 3002 00O
1 006 280 1150 034 1 006 280 1 150 034
1 006 280 4 162 034 1006 280 4 152 034
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

512

{b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Capital management (Continued)

Computation of capital position [Continued)

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014

Il Eligible secondary capital K K K K

(the maximum amount of secondary capital is

imited o 100% of primary capital) 1006 280 4 152 034 1 006 280 4 152 034
Iv Eligibée lotal capital (Iio) + |Il) (Regulatory capital) 22 995 633 TT 413 261 17 467 078 78077136
V  Minimum total capital requirement:

(10% of tolal on and off financial position rsk-

weighted assels ps established) 104 000 000 104 000 000 104 000 000 104 000 000
VI  Excess (deficiency) (IV minus V) {81 004 367) {25 586 T38) (86 532 923) {25 022 BB4)
Regulatory ratios
Tiar 1 capital as a percentage of lotal sk weighied
asgnls % 1% % 1%
Tiar 1 and Ther 2 capital as a parcentage of total nsk
weightnd assats % 1% % 11%

On 30 January 2012, the Bank of Zambia revised the minimum capital reguirement for all banks frorm K12 million (o K104 million
and K520 Million for local and foreign owned banks, respectivaly, and sel the deadline for full compliance as 31 December
2012. The bank securad Bank of Zambia approval 1o axiend the deadline 1o enabla it complete the lengthy process of raising
capital through a nghts issue. The bank has been appraising Bank of Zambia on the progress made on the capital raise
exercise for K40 million. The bank concluded lormalities for execution of the rights issue by 31 December 2015 and immedialely

commenced (he process

The Bank is on course with the capltal raise exercise aimed al increasing primany capital to the revised imit of K104 million

within tha extended tmebnes grantad by the Bank of Zambia,

INTEREST INCOME GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
Arising on:
Loans and advances fo:
- cuslomers T1 528 335 BE 571 576 69 069 B54 BB 56T1 BTG
- banks 835677 3 68T 200 935 677 3 697 200
T2 464 012 00 268 776 70 005 531 90 268 7re
Held to maturity investments 59 320 361 45 446 BE9 58 320 361 45 446 BE9
Leasing 16 622 104 10 326 285 16 622 104 10 326 285
Open markel operations placements 350 107 10127 350 107 10 127
Corporate bonds - - 142 856 -
148 756 584 146 052 057 146 440 959 146 052 D57
INTEREST EXPENSE
Arising on:
Deposits due to customers 89 289 42 B4 538411 B9 289 B42 B4 538 411
Deposits from banks 15 469 986 8 100 605 15 469 986 8 100 605
104 759 B28 492 640 016 104 759 828 92 640 016
Dbt securifies in issue 2 BBE 194 2934879 2 B36 194 2934 g7
Bormowings 1344 751 1174 485 1 080 132 1 174 495
108 990 773 U6 749 390 108 726 154 06 749 300
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

B.

9.

10.

1.

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Balance al the beginning of the year

Impairment losses recognised on loans and
advances

Effect of foreign curmancy movements

Amounts recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Amounts charged 1o profil or Ioss are made up
a5 follows:

Impairment losses recognised on loans and
advances

Effect of foreign cummancy movements
FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Sundry transaction fees and commissions
Ledger fees

Credit related fees and commissions
Assetl management fees

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Bank chargas
Handiing fees on Govemnment secuntias

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

Salaries and other staff benefit costs
Pension costs - defined contribution ptan
Total Remuneration paid

Stall medcal
Staff raining
Staff insurance

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
B4 B02 733 78093366 B4 802175 78093 366
8 490 981 6 452 867 8 321 194 6452 308
(35 B30 392) 1750107 (35 830 392) 1750 107
(898 033 (1433 607) (898 033) (1493 607)
56 565 289 84 802 733 56394044 B4 802175
8 490 981 6 452 867 8 321 194 6 452 309
(25 830 392) 1750107 (35 830 392) 1750 107
30 093 097 32867054 28708018 32867016
24 504 992 23 624 637 24531344 23644 551
9 052 101 7 294 604 9 052 101 7 204 604
292 048 770 076 292 048 770 076
63 042 238 B4 561 371 583511 64 576 247
2227 B84 663 647 2 227 884 1072 068
1154 275 862 670 1154 275 862 670
3382 159 1 526 317 3 382 159 1934 738
93 732 058 B6 847788 90658711 65402632
5012 308 1528 963 5012 308 1528 963
98 744 366 68 376 751 95671019 66931 585
3113774 1512672 3 052 807 1487 910
650 772 759 962 643 927 75 962
500 375 406 929 500 375 408 929
103 009 287 71056 314 99 868 128 60 586 396
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

11.

12

13.

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED) GROUP BANK
20158 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
Administrative expenses
Occupancy 12 D66 586 B843 738 11 816 488 AT s
Motor vehicle costs 5 086 996 G 378 BE8 5096 466 B 375 338
Telecommunication and postags 14 108 972 11314 793 14 033 873 11 278 BO2
Ofice and security expenses 6 368 316 5000 392 6332233 5951 660
a7 640 BTO 32 535 193 araraom 32 325 098
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
{note 20 -and nole 22) 14 048 T18 11 754 620 14 894 292 11 738792
Other expensas 13157 328 gar sy 12 550 792 & 618 683
Markating and public ralations 4411018 5873044 4309 545 5840 025
Traval expenses 3087 683 4 229 288 3901 304 4224 323
Professional and kgal lees 5913 444 3 904 087 5 340 486 A 672 657
Fegairs and mainienanca 3250 662 J 142 890 3246412 3083405
Printing and stationery 1572 688 1648 684 1539930 1641671
Amaunts witlen off duning the year as uncolflactible 420 TBT - 420 78T -
AT 662 328 40 526 051 46 203 468 38 B40 362
188 312 485 144 118 158 183 350 667 141 751 B54
LOSS BEFORE TAX
Loss bifore tax is stated afler crediting:
Interast recenable from other banks IS ETT 3697 200 935677 A 697 F00
Rental income 77 090 78 440 77 090 78 490
Gain on disposal of property and equipment . 10 000 - 10 D00
and afler charging
Depraciation and amortisation (Nate 20 and 22) 14048 718 11 754 620 14 894 212 11738 To2
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 376 469 - 376 468 -
Pension costs - employer's contributions 5012 308 1 528 863 5012 308 1528 963
Directors emoaluments:
= In copmection with the management of the Company 2958877 2 628 795 2958877 2881 115
- fees and expanses 2410 697 1211 B4R 2410 697 1 045 866
Interast payabla to other banks 15 458 986 11 858 280 15 469 986 8 100 805
Danations 338132 410 700 338 832 506 688
INCOME TAX CREDIT
Income tax is charged at 35% on banking profits in 2015
(2074; 35%) Withholding tax on Govemment Bonds
interast and Traasury bitls disoount @ 15% and that s
glso the final tax. All non banking profits are texed at
35% in 2015 (2014: 38%),
Cument tax
Basad on non banking profits 26 982 7 848 26 Baz2 T Bag
26 982 T B4g 26 982 T 849
Prior panod ovar provisioning on banking profits - B - =
Deterred tax (note 28) {24 856 069) {1 026471) (24 554 3T4) (342 772
{24 829 08T) {1018 622) {24 527 392) (334 B23)
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPEMNSE (CONTINUED) GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
The current tax assel has been derived as follows:
Payable in respact of the yaar 26 962 T 844 26982 T B8
Recoverabie in respect of pravious years (21 617 473) (16 BES 48%) (21 617 473) (16 865 48%)
(21 580 491) (16857 640) (21 590 491) (16 B57 B40)
Assassad amounts offset against tax aszed 5003 918 - 5003918 -
Income tax payments made - . - -
Withholding tax suffered dunng the year {10 231 207) {4 758 B33) {10 231 207) (4 TS50 B33)
Total paid and sulfered {10 231 207) {4 758 A33) (10 231 207) (4 TS5 B3Y)
Incoms tax recoverable (26 817 Ta0) {21 617 473) (26 817 T8O) (21 617 473)
Tax assessment amounts

The Zambia Revenue Authodty (ZRA) conducted
assessments on the bank’s tax retums submitted for the
yaars 2008 to 2012 relating to Corporale Income Tax
(CIT), Value Added Tax (VAT), and Pay As You Eam
{PAYE), Ansing from ihis sssessment, an addiional tax
eharge of KS5003918 was assessed as payabla from
the differant tax types assessed. Managemenl have
sought approvel fo offsel this assessed tox llabiity
against the tax azsel of K26 844 762 as at 31 Dacember
2015. A total of K4,062.088 of the assessed lability has
besn expensed in the income statement while K527 677
has been capilalised due lo 15 nalure. The batance of
K414,152 has been captured under sundry debtors as il
constitutes amounts that are recoverabls from clisnts,

Reconciliation of the tax charge (credit):

The tax on the Bank’s profit before mcome tax differs
from the theoralical amount thit would anse using the
siaiutory income {ax rate as follows:

Loss before lax {77 163 873) {7 381 373) (75 442 001) (5 408 (58]
Tax at the applicable rate of 35% (2013: 35%) (27 DOT 355) (2 583 481) (26 404 TOO) {1 892 B20)
- Rate differental B . - ]

- Priof pariod aver provisioning on banking profits . - = 4
- Prior paricd adjustment on capital allowances - = = =
- Parmanan! differences 2178 268 1 564 B58 1877 308 1557 847

(24 B28 08T) {1018 822} (24 527 382} (334 B23)

Subject o sgreement with the Zambia Revenue
Authority, the Bank has estimated tax losses of
mpproximately KB82,460.251 (2014  K10.199.809)
avaable to carry forward for a penod of not mone than &
yaars rom the charge vear i which thay were incummed,
for set off agains! future taxable profit from the samao

sourte &5 follows:

2015 lax losses available uniil 2020 72 561 627 - T2 269 442 =
2014 o bonses available untll 2019 8 107 421 B583 M7 6593017 a 583 017
2013 tax Iosses available until 2018 3638 433 3 606 72 3606 T92 3606 792
2012 tax logses available untll 2017 6926 8 826 . =

85 404 407 10 206 735 B2 469 231 10 186 804
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

14,

15

16

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF ZAMBIA

Balances with Central Bank:

Statutory deposits
Current account

Cash In tranmit
Cash on hand

From bme to tme the Central Bank prescribes the
minimum required statutory deposit ratio as @ maans of
protecting customers’ deposits. The statutory deposiis

are restricted and not avallable for use in the Bank's day-

to-day oparations and are non-intarest bearing. Cash an
hand and cument account balances am non-interest
beanng.

Opan Markal Dporation ("OMO”) doposiis ane fooed rale
assals.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO/FROM BANKS
Amounts due from other banks
Amounts dus 1o ofher banks

The amounts due o and from other banks relale to shorl
term placements and borrowings. These amounts are all
currant in natura,

HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Treasury bills
Govermmant bonds
Corparate bonds

Current
MNon-cuman

Treasury bills
Face value

Maturily period
0-81 days

g2 - 182 days
183 - 273 deys
274 - 364 days

Less: unoarned discount

GROUP BANK

2015 2014 2015 2014

K K K K
205609209 188 525411 205609209 188525411
25401573 145550 335 25401573 145558 335
231010782 334 084 746 231010782 334 084 746
2764 782 2 2764 782 3
69736410 46 275 220 69 735 960 46 273 654
303511974 380 359 966 303 511524 380 358 400
5 066 455 112 583603 5 066 455 112 563 6593
150 512 786 . 150 512 786 .
178624 282 312 896 545 178624282 312 896546
34413915 53595612 34413915 53585 612
5 - 5 456 000 -
213038197 366 492 150 218404197 366 492 158
178498 601 342 528 BEI 178498601 342 928 863
34539596 23 563 295 39 995 596 23583 205
213038 197 366 492 158 218 494 197 366 492 158
40 000 000 33 945 000 40 000 000 33945 000
115 000 000 4 115 000 115 000 000 4 115 000
- 260000000 - 250000 000
45000000 52000 000 45 000 000 52 000 D00
200 000 000 350 0G0 000 200000000 350 080 000
(21375 718) (37 163 454) (21375718) (37 183 454)
178 624 282 312 896 546 178624282 312 896 548
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

16,

HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Government bonds
Face valuo
Maturity period

0 - 91 days

82 - 365 days

366 - 730 days

731 - 1095 days
1098 - 1826 days

Less: uneamed discount

Maturity analysis:
Due within one year
Duw after more than ona year

Corporate bonds

The bank subscribed fo a seven (7) year
Madium Term Note issued by Zambian Home
Loans for a fotal note amount of K13,640,000
at an annual interast rate benchmarked o the
Bank of Zambia Policy Rale plus 182
Treasury Bill Rate

Pledged assets

Traasury bills
Government bonds

The pledged asseis prasented in the table
above are those financial assats thal may be
rapledged or rasold by countarparties. These
transactons are conducted under lerms that
are usual and customary o standard lending,
and sacurifies bomowing and  lending
activities. These treasury bills are held as
collateral by wholesale deposilors and
Zambia Electronic Clearing House,

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
- 10 500 000 - 10500 00O
15 000 000 20 000 000 15 000 000 20 000 000
25000 000 670 000 25 000 000 670 000
- 25 000 000 = 25 000 000
&70 000 - 670 000 -
40 670 00O 56 170 000 40 €70 00O 56 170 000
(6 256 085) (2 574 388) (6 256 085) {2 574 388)
M 43NS 53 595 612 34 413915 53 505 612
15 000 000 30 500 000 15 000 000 30 500 000
25 670 000 25 670 000 25 670 000 25 670 000
40 €70 000 56 170 000 40 670 000 56 170 00D
160 500 000 £61 802 000 160 500 000 261 802 000
40 670 000 45 000 000 40 6§70 000 45 000 000
201170 000 306 802000 201 170 000 306 802 000
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

17.

18,

OTHER ASSETS

Other recesvables and prepaymants

Current
Non-current

Thia snalysis of other receivables and prepayments (s as
foliows:

Suspense cleanng accounts
Sundry debtors

Prepayments

VAT recelvable

Intaras! receivablas

ZRA iax assassmant amounts

INVENTORY
Stationery and chegue books

The cost of inventones relating to stationary and chegue
books recoghised as an expense amounled 1o
K1,539,530 (2014: K1,641,571) does not mclude -any
amounts in respect of write downs of inventory fo net
realisable value,

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customans
Less: impairad loans and advances (nole 8)

Loss: Suspandad interas]

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
150 711 104 29403 195 150 336 910 29 116 960
150711104 20403195 150 336910 29 116 960
150 711104 29403195 150 336 910 29 118 960
34 817 311 5120683 34 817 311 5120 693
109 409 506 19 146 847 109 419 686 18 925 852
2736 234 3237 66 2 351 860 3172 628
2 268 784 670 296 2 268 784 B70 206
1 065 117 1227 691 1065 117 1 227 691
414 152 5 414 152 -
150 711 104 29403195 150 336 910 29 116 960
1 008 796 768 888 1 008 796 768 688
753675157 8012336330 732417620  BOOBTE 295
(56 565 289) (B4 807 733) (56 394 945) (84 802 175)
(199 596 539) (219374 704) (199 596 539) (219 374 704)

437 513 329

447 158 893

476 426 136

456 690 418
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

20. EQUITY INVESTMENT GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K

The movement in nvestments in shares
during the year were as follows:

Al beginning of year 584972 596 447 7494 052 871447
Loss in falr value of
marketable equity investments (1275) (11 475) (1275) (11 475)
Investmants in shares - - - 6 634 080
583697 584972 7 492 777 7 494 052
Zamblan Home Loans Limited - - 6909 08B0 & 209 080
Prima Reinsurance Zambia Plc 369 762 ar1 037 369 762 ar1 oar
Swift International Share Subscription 126 537 126 537 126 537 126 537
Zambla Electronic Clearing House Lid 87 398 87 308 87 398 a7 394
583 697 584 G972 T 492777 T 494 052
Zambia Home Loans Limited

The Bank holds 51% of the equity shares in Zambian Home Loans Limited, owned with Sofala Capital that holds
25% and African Life Financial Services holds 24% equily shares. Zambian Home Loans Limilad is therefore a
subsidiary of Investrust Bank Ple. The Investment is carmiad al cosl.

Prima Reinsurance Zambia Plc

The Bank holds 0.43% shares in Prima Reinsurance Zambia Ple. The invesiment is camied at fair value. The
Bank's shareholding ramained unchangad at 127 504 shares.

Swift International Share Subscription

The Bank subscribed to & mandatory offer for purchase of shares from Swift International in 2012, SWIFT
reallocates its shareholding at least every three years to members in live operations on the basis of the financlal
contribution from network based services invoiced in the preceding year (Per Swift by-Laws General Membership
Rules, Clausa 9.2) Tha Bank gained entilement to allocation of Six SWIFT shares in 2012 and therefore becarme
a sharaholder afler purchasing the allocated shares. The Investrment is carrled al cost,

Zambia Electronic Clearing House

The Bank also holds 1.96% shares in Zambia Electronic Clearing House Limited ("ZECHL"). All banks in Zambia
which participate in clearing are required to hold shares in ZECHL. The shares have been issued to this value in
the name of the Bank. This investmen! represents the cost of the issued share capital of ZECHL. The
investment is camed at cost as there s no market for this investment that provide a reliable measure of fair
valus,

Mo dividends are expecied from these invesiment in the foreseeable fulure and consequently there are no
detarminable future cash inflows. It is not possible to delermine a possible range of estimates within which the
fair value of this investmenl is likely lo be.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

21. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The movement in the propenty and equipment were as follows:

GROUP
Fumniture Motor Capital
Leasahold Leasehald and wvehicles and work in
buildings improvemeants fietures equipment progress Total
K K K K K K

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 7 809 238 35 803 237 T 582 558 42 426 101 5759010 a5 280 142
Additons 30338 52T D48 127 87T 3 TTG 2489 14 408 363 19148 BE2
Reclassification - 5823 628 454 931 6211808 (17 720 596) {5 080 041)
Disposals - - {425 754) - (425 T54)
Balanca at 31 December 2014 B 210 577 420539013 B 205384 51 9848 592 2448TB3 M294ZD
Additions - 209 387 303 608 7 258 070 4 172 570 12 033 635
Ruclassification - - {7 B32) - (2 47T BET) (2 485 B99)
Disposals - . - {1 534 367) . (1 534 367)
Balance at 31 Decembaer 2015 B 219 577 421531300 B S0Y 140 57 712 295 4 141 486 120 927 T8
Accumulated depreciation
Batance 3t 1 January 2014 - GO45173 2647438 22010 646 - 31 603257
Chaege for the yoar 164 382 3381376 729 parT 5925 810 - 10 181 565
Eliminated on disposais - - - {425 T54) {425 T54)
Balanco at 31 Decomber 2014 164 392 10306 549 3377 425 27 510 To2 - 41 359 068
Change for the year - 3 555 604 781 582 T 785 79O - 12 103 085
Eliminated on disposals - - - (B50 BES) {650 B65)
Balance st 31 December 2015 164 392 13862243 415907 34 625 BI6 - 52 511 488
Carrying amount
Balance at 31 December 2015 B 055 185 2B 401057 4342123 23 056 450 4 141 488 68 116 310
Balanca al 31 Dacembar 2014 8 055 185 1 74T 384 4 B27 B39 24 47T BSO 24448 TEL T1 555 161
BANK
Cost
Balanca at T January 2014 T 805 238 35 603 237 T 582 556 A2 436 101 5 T55 010 95 280 142
Additions o3 527 048 71 800 3BT 461 14 408 369 18602 117
Raclassification - 5923828 454 931 5211 986 (17 T20 596) (5 080 O41)
Dinpasals = . - (425 754) . {425 T54)
Balance at 31 Decombeor 2014 8219 577 42053913 B 148 387 51 BSE BO4 ZA46TE3 112 756 454
Additons - 209 387 303 08 T 201 143 4172 570 11 076 708
Raclassification - - (7 832) (2 47T BET) (2 485 &U0)
Disposals = - - {1534 367) (1 534 367)
Balance at 31 December 2015 & 218 577 42353 300 8 445 163 57 553 580 4141 486 120 713 106
Accumulated depraciation
Balance at 1 January 2014 - 6945173 2647 438 22 010 p48 - 31603 257
Chiange for tho year 164 392 33681376 TE3 458 5M7 51 - 10 166 737
Eliminated on disposals - * - {425 T54) = (425 TH4)
Balance at 31 Decombaer 2014 164 392 10306 549 337D BOE 27 502 403 - 41 344 240
Chama for the year 3 555 604 T8 682 TT1 283 B 12 D43 579
Eliminaled on disposais - - - {650 665) - {650 BA5)
Balance at 31 December 2015 164 392 13862 243 4 152 488 34 583 0 - 52 742 154
Carrying amournt
Balance st 31 Decombor 2015 B 055 185 28 481 057 4 292 675 2 990 549 4 141 486 &7 970 952
Balnnes ot 31 Decambar 2014 B 055 185 31 74T 384 4 TTA 499 24 384 401 £ &46 TBI 71412 224

Capital work In progress comprises of costs incurmod in refation to the prosect 1o rollout Mastercard
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

23.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
Authorised and contracted for 10 320 000 17 410 725 10 320 000 17410 725
Al 31 Decamber 2015, the Bank had capital commitments in
respect of property and eqguipmen! purchases. The Bank's
managamant is confident that fulure nel revenues and
funding will ba sufficiant o cover thase commiimants.
DEFERRED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT Software
EXPENDITURE development
costs
GROUP AND BANK K
Cost
At 1 January 2014 11 645 162
Additions caplured directly 483 576
Reclassifications from capital work In progress 5 090 041
At 31 December 2014 17 188 778
Amortisation
At 1 January 2014 5978 274
Amodisation for the year 1 573 055
Al 31 Decamber 2014 7 552 329
Camying amount 31 Decembar 2014 9 546 450
Cost
At 1 January 2015 17 188 778
Additions capiured directly 1 036 486
Tax assessment amounis capitalised (nole 13) 8527 677
Reclassifications from capital work in progress 2 485 690
At 31 December 2015 21 248 641
Amortisation
At 1 January 2015 T 552 329
Amortisation for the year 2 B45 633
AL 31 December 2015 10 397 962
Carrying amount 31 December 2015 10 850 679
Carmying amacunt 31 December 2014

9 646 450
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2015

24,

DEPOSITS FROM
CUSTOMERS

Current accounts

Deposit accounts
Savings accounts

Cheque savers' accounts
SME accounls

Al deposits accounts have
ficed interest rates., The
customer accounts are spii
as follows:

Retail customars

- Savings accounts

- Cheque Saver accolinls
- Current accounts

- Depaosit accounts

Corporate customers

- Currenl accounts
- Daposit accounts

- Cheque Saver accounts
- Savings accounis

The maturity analysis for the
term deposit accounts s as
follows:

Period

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days

61 - 90 days
91 - 365 days
Above 3B5 days

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
266 847 033 641 290 298 266 847 033 644 080 093
518 233 208 511421 832 518 233 208 518921 832
109 543 181 111 418 488 109 543 181 111 418 488
178 352 832 126 024 873 182 494 504 126 024 B73
35 257 226 662 042 15 257 226 G682 042
1 108 233 480 13890 818 433 1112 375 152 1402 108 228
104 894 674 108 017 673 104 894 674 108 017 673
21819 214 18 B44 173 21819 214 18 B44 173
2 449 245 45990 170 2 449 245 45990 170
24 985 205 5441 632 24 985 205 5 441 632
154 148 338 178 293 708 154 148 338 178 293 708
299 654 525 595 963 069 290 654 525 508 752 BG4
493 248 000 505 980 140 493 248 000 514 480 140
160 675 289 107 180 700 160 675 289 107 180 700
507 328 3 400 816 4 649 000 3 400 816
954 085 142 1212 524 725 958 226 814 1223 814 520
1108 233 480 1380 818 433 1112 375 152 1402 108 228
92 065 T69 270 901 483 92 065 TE9 270901 483
233 491 369 43 248 403 233 491 369 43 246 403
105 131 Ta6 55 047 294 105 131 786 55 047 294
B7 544 284 141 277 932 B7 544 284 140 777 932
» 46 720 - 46 720
518 233 208 511 421 832 518 233 208 519 521 832
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

24, DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS GROUP BANK
({CONTINUED) 2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K

(Decrease)increase in amounts due to
dapositons:
Current accounts (374 443 265) 243 502 393 {377 233 DB0) 246 262 188
Deposit accounts 6811376 114 741 175 (1 688 624) 123241174
Savings accounts (1875 307) (9 959 546) (1875 307) (9 958 546)
Cheaque savers’ accounis 52 327 959 1238 327 56 469 631 1239337
SME accounis 34 594 284 6 814 862 34 594 284 6 814 862

DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE

Fﬂ 584 953) 356 338 211 (289 733 076) 367 628 006

Kwacha Medium Term Noles due 2015 - 15 010 (00 - 15 010 000

MNon=currant - 15 010 000 - 15 010 000

Tha debl securities are repayable only

on maturity, None of the deb! sacurities

are secured, Thea Bank has not had any

defaulls on inferest amounts during the

yEar

The annual effective interos! rate on the

debt securifies In 2015 was 21.771%

(2014: 19.55%)

. BORROWINGS

At 1 January 2015 18 265 701 28 653 279 18 2685 701 28653279

Contracted during the yvear 8 184 000 - - -

Repaymants during the year (6 208 689) (12 925 B35} (6 208 688) {12 925 835)

Effects of foreign currency revaluation 8631 3 2 538 067 B 631 394 2 538 057

At 31 December 2015 28 872 406 18 265 701 20 688 406 18 265 701

Zambia Enterprise Davelopment Project

("ZEDP") 13 819 656 13 118 830 13 819 656 13 118 B30

Ajfrican Life Financial Services Limited B 184 000 - - -

European investment Bank ("EIB™) 6 B6E T50 5 146 871 6 868 750 5146 871
28 BT2 406 18 265 TO1 20 688 406 18 265 TO1

Currant liability payable within one year (8 B24 285) (12 B89 426) (8 224 285) (12 D88 426)

Non-current liability 20 048121 E 276 275 12 I_H- 121 5276275

nvestruze, | 1()7



Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

26,

(i)

(i)

(i)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The Zambia Enterprise Development Project ("ZEDP")

The ZEDP facility is part of the Intemational Development Agency Suppornt Programme o the Government
of the Republic of Zambia and is managed through the Bank of Zambia and participating financial
intermediaries. The amoun! represents the principal amount due to Bank of Zambia,

The amounts are borrowed by the Bank for on-lending to customers undor ease arangaments in certain
seciors of the economy,

The ZEDP |loans bear interest at the rate of 5%. The Bank has not had any defaults of principal, interest or
redemption amounts during the penod (2014: Nil).

The annual weighted average effective interest rate was 5.9% per annum in 2015 (2014: 545%).

The purpose of the loan oblained by the Bank was fo finance small lo medium scale enterprises In
investment in fixed assets and export trade.

African Life Financial Services Limited

Zambian Home Loans Limited issued a Medium Term Note Program of K45m, The amount of K8,184,
285 had been received from African Life Financial Services Limited as at 31 December 2015 The
effactive interes! rate on the Corporate Bond is 18.97%

The European Investment Bank facility (“EIB")

The EIB facility is part of the Global Facility under the Parinership agreement between the members of the
Alrican, Caribbean and Pacific ({ACP) Group of States on one hand and the European Community and its
member states on the other hand to grant credit to financial institlulions acceptable to the Bank. The facility
is to be used for financing of small and medium sized investment projects (o be camried out in Zambia by
private enterprises.

The EIB lpan bears interest al a fixed rate of 8% per annum and repayable in ten years with a grace
period of three years.
The annual welghted average effeclive interes! rate was 5% per annum in 2015 {2014; 9.31%),

The fevel of borrowings as at year end were US$E25,000 (KB,868,750) which was within the maximum
borrowings authonsed by the aricles of association of K466, 523, 100,
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

27. OTHER LIABILITIES GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
Interest payable on deposils 3B 507 619 ar 131 226 38 507 619 37 131 996
Sundry payables 32 514 843 16 728 840 30 508 114 16 108 221
Bankers cheques paj‘sblﬂ 2019 510 3118 122 2019 510 3Ma122
Interest payable on borrowings 385 276 357 383 120 657 357 383
T3 427 248 57 336 341 71 155 900 56 715 722
Sundry payables
Thess can be analysed as follows:
Cther creditors and accruals 14235 711 4554314 13 746 658 4554 314
Sundry creditors 11285 514 2018 342 9 880 551 1388 723
Payroll related Eabilities 4493372 7 994 202 4 380 659 7 004 202
Unpresanted drafts 2 500 246 2 095 892 2 500 246 2 085 ga2
Forward commitments - @5 090 = 65 090
32 514 843 16 728 840 30 508 114 16 108 221
. DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Dafarred laxes areé calculated on all lamporary
differences under the liability method using an effective
tax rate of 35% (2014: 35%),
Tax effect of tming differences due to:
Temporary differences on properly, and equipment 1646 222 230 377 1630 741 2292 762
Other provisions (1 554 520) (2 244 937) {1 456 980) (2 104 640)
Proparty revaluation 1935154 1935154 1935154 1835154
Tax losses {29 103 281) (4 211 950) {28 195 946) (3 H89 533)
Deferred {ax assets {27 076 425) {2 2320 356) (26 091 031) {1 536 B5T)
The following are the major defered lax assels
recognised by the Bank and their movements in the
year.
GROUP
Accelerated
Other Property Tax capital
provisions revaluation lossas allowances Total
K K K K K
At 1 January 2014 (3233 024) 1835 154 (1 262 37T) 1 366 362 (1183 885)
Ansing in the year;
- Charged (credit) o
income (Mole 13) 988 087 2 {2 949 573} 9as 015 {1 026 471}
Al 31 December 2014 |2 244 937) 1935154 (4 211 950) 2301317 (2 220 356)
Ansing In the year:
- Charged (cradit) to
income {Note 13) 690 417 - {24 891 331) {655 155) (24 B56 0G5
At 31 December 2015 (1 554 520) 1835154 (29 103 281) 1646 222 (27 076 425)
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (CONTINUED)

BANK Accolerated
Other Property Tax capital
provisions revaluation losses allowances Total
K K K K K
At 1 January 2014 {3 233 024) 1835 154 {1262 3717) 1386 362 (1 193 Bas)
Arkaing in the year,
- Charged (credit) 1o
income (Nota 13) 1035 384 - {2 307 556) 926 400 (342 772)
AL 31 December 2014 (2 194 640) 1935154 (3 569 933) 23292762 {1 536 657)
Artsing in the year:
- Charged (cradit) to
Income {Mote 13} 737 660 - {24 630 013) (662 021) (24 658 374)
At 31 Decembar 2015 (1 456 980] 1935 154 {28 199 946) 1630 741 (26 091 031)

Recoverabiity of the defermad tax asset has been carefully considarad by the Directors in view of the practice of tha Zambia
Revenua Authonty o lapse tax lossas after five years following the year thay wara incurmed and having due consideration io tha
manner [n which taxable profils will arise In the foreseeabie fulure. On the basis of business plans for the foresesable lulure and
a raview of the Company's performance to date of the issue of these financial stalements, the Direciors are confidant the
defarred tax assai recognised is fully recoverable.

SHARE CAPITAL

2015
K

Authorsed ordinary shares of K1 each 120,000,000

(2014: 120,000,000).

Issued and fully paid up

120 000 000

4 665,231 ordinary shares ol K1 each (2014: 4 665 231

shares of K1 each).

Below is the shareholding structure;
Meamwood Venture Capital Limited

ZCCM Investment Holdings Pic

Lupande Family Trust Limited

Jacob Lameck Shuma

Diaks Timothy

Waorkers' Compensation Fund Control Board
Stanbic Bank Zambia Stalf Pension Schame
Justin Bavin Zulu

Satunia Regna Pension Trust Fund
Madison Pension Trust Fund

Individual and instituttonal invesiors

Total

Public Shamsholders
Mon - Public sharaholders

Taotal

4 665 231

24
K

120 D00 000

4 665 211

2015

5.0
10.6
10.6

8.1

73

L

51

33
132

2014
%
200
10.8
108
10.7
107
6.7
54

a1
ar
a3
13.2

100.00

100.00

106
894

106
B9.4

100.00

100.00
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

30.

31.

32.

(a) STATUTORY RESERVES

The siatutory reserve is established in accordance with Chapler VI Section 89 of the Banking and Financial
Services Act, 1994 (as amended). Current regulation stipulales that a bank shall maintain a reserve account
and before declaring any dividend, shall transfer 1o Its reserve account, 20% to 50% of the net profit of each
year after due provision has been made for tax, fo a maximum of the issued share capital.

(b) GENERAL BANKING RESERVES

The Bank has charged the impairment loss on loans and advances in accordance with 1AS 39. The diffarence
of the charge for impairment on loans and advances based on Bank of Zambia regulatory requirements under
Statutory Instrumant No. 142 and the charge based on the Bank policy which follows the guidance of IFRS (IAS
38) has been transferred from revenue reserves to the general banking reserve, although the Bank has nol
complied in full with this requiremant.

Final dividends are nol accounted for until they have been ratified al the Annual General Meeting. Al the
meeling heid on 2 April 2015, no dividend was proposed in respect of 2014.

No dividend in respect of 2015 is to be proposaed at the Annual General Maeting to be held on 31 March 2018,
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

{a) Legal proceedings

There ware a number of legal proceedings outstanding against the Bank al 31 December 2015. No provision
has been made as professional advice Indicates that it is unlikely that any significant loss will arise.

(b} Loan commitments, guarantees and other financial facilities

Al 31 December 2015 the Bank off-balance sheet financial instruments thal commit il to extend credit lo
customers, guarantee and other facilifies as follows:

2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
GROUP GROUP BANK BANK
Guaraniees and performance bonds B3 046 383 101 645 051 83 D46 363 101 263 066

(c) Assets pledged

Assals are pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements with other Banks and for security deposilts
relating to Real Time Gross Settlements and Zambia Electronic Clearing House Limited memberships.
Mandatory reserve deposils are also held with |ocal Ceniral Bank in accordance with statulory reguirernents,
These deposits are not available fo finance the Bank's day to day operations.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

33, RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS ([CONTINUED)
{a) Loans and advances to related parties {Continwed)

The amounts on connected enfiies anse on:

* Loan facilites; and
* Rentals of office premizes

** Tha loans ssusd to other key management parsonngl during the year are governad by the general conditions of servica for
managemant staff

The kosns and advances (o assocaled companies are secured by Direclors personal guarantees supported by a mortgage and
are repayable on demand,
The entilies ans relatad 1o the Bank through common Direclorship and sharehobdings.

b} Directors' interests in the Bank

As ol 31 Decamber 2015, the |nteresis of Dieciors in the Company, as recorded In the register and on the Lusaka Stock
Exchanges, were as follows:

2015 2014
Total ordinary issued shares of the Company i BB5 532 4 BAS 532
Direct sharaholding
Dr. JM. Mwanza 5451 .
Mrs. E. Jhala - -
Mr. H. Hachongo - -
Mr. E, Samakal - .
Dr. R.K Chambea - -
Mr. F, Ndholwua (Retired April 2015)
Indirect shareholding 493 250 493 250
Mr. F. Ndhaolvu (Ratired Aprl 2015) - -

(e} Other transactions with related partles
Dwrectors and other key
management personnel Related companies

2015 2014 2015 2014

K K K K

Ranlal income - - 70 440 70 440
Cost of office foral arrangamant - - Lzl-ﬂ 7.20) (262 530)

{d) Directors’ remuneration and key management personnel compansation
A list af the members of the Board of Directors (s shown on page 1 of the financial stalemants undar (he Report of the Directors

2015 2014
K K
Salanes 2958 977 2861115
Diractors fees and axpenses 2 410 897 1 049 BBE
Terminal banefits 11 191 800 =
16 561 474 3810 981
Hon Executive Directors’ remuneration
Analysis is as follows:
Directors {eas,
M. H. Hachongo 595 459 174 138
Mrs. E. Jhala 588 172 190 723
Mr. E. Samakal 558 834 116 (02
Dr. 4 M. Mwanza 363 305 146 497
Mr. NLA Lungu 58 046 174 138
Dr. LB, Zulu - 66 338
Mr. R.L. Bwulani - B2 923
2 163 906 950 851
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

33

M

{i)

(i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

{d) Directors’ remuneration and key management personnel compensation (Continued)

Executive Diectors’ annual ramunaration 2015 2014
K K
Analysis is as follows:
Dr. R.K Chemba
Basic salary 1 320 000 -
Oiher afiowances 772880 -
Total 2 092 880 -

Mr. F.C. Ndholvu (Retired April 2015)

Basic salary 1026 326 2 239 258
Oither allowsnces 353 3g 621 858
Teminal bensfits 11 191 800 -
Total 12 571 507 2 B61 115

SEGMENT REPORTING

Following the management approach of IFRS 8, operating segments are reporied in accordance with the internal reporting
provided to the Executive Management Committes (the chief operating decision-maker), which is responaible for alincating
resources o the reporable segments and assesses s pedormance. All operating segments used by the Bank mest the
delinition of & reportable segment under IFRS 8.

The Group has thres main nes of busnass:
Retall and operations

This business unilt catiws for besiness with retail cllents (Le indviduals and MSMEs) and covers all Branch operationg.
Transactions processed include deposits, withdrawals and oans and advances among others

Wholesale banking

This business sagméent covers corporate and institutional banling customers and offers such services as loans and advances,
corporate finance. frade finance, cash management, deposiis and payments processing and other transactionsl senices. This
unit incomparates Corporale and Investment Banking, Public Sector and Non-Proflt Institwtions and Treasury departments.
Treasury ks responsible for liguidity management through investments in shoriderm placerments and corporate and government
soacurities, borowing on the money markels, issue ol debl securities, kquidity and interes! rate risk management, AmMoung
others.

Mortgages Financing

This businass segment covers lending to employees of approved institutions and covers morigages financing for construction
purpose to qualifying institulions.

Saegmant revenue reporied below represents revenue generaied from exiemal cusiomers.
Sagment capital expenditure is the total cost incumed during the year 1o scquing proparly and aquipment,
The Group operales only in ona geographical segment.
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

34, SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Maortgage Financing {Continued)
GROUP
2015

External revenue

Met interesi income

Met fee and commission income

Met foreign exchange trading incoma
Other operaling income

Total segment income

Expenses

Opersating expenses

Recovery(impairment ) losses on
|nans and advancas

Reportable segment operating (loss) profit
before tax

Other gaing and losses
Central adm|nisiration costs and director's salanss
Finance coais

Loss before tax
Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities and equity

GROUP
014

External revenue
MNel interest income

Mat fea and commission incoma

Met foreign exchangs trading income
Other operating incoma

Total segment Income

Expenses

Operaling expenses

Recoveryl{impairment) losses on
loans and advances

Roportable segment operating (loss) profit
before tax

Other gains and losses
Ceniral adminisiration costs and director's salaries
Finance costs

Profit (Loss) before tax
Reportable segment assats
Reportable segment liabilities and equity

Retail and Wholesale Mortgage Total
operations Banking Financing

T 535205 30 179 600 2051 006 39 TE5 811
&6 760 657 5822 854 1368727 63942 238
= 18 338 580 - 18 338 580
£ 850 582 002 = 508 652
64 302 512 54 933 036 34008733 122 645 281
{61127 014 (78 780 464) (4 861 820) {144 870 198)
- (8321 184) (168 78T) (8 480 881)
3174 598 (32 168 622) {1721 873) (30 715 B8T)
- (43 0685 817) o (43 065 81T)
(21 260) (3 360 Bo9) (3 382 159)
3 153 338 (78 585 338) {1721 8530 {77 163 873)
BEG 07V 203 T02 048 273 22 718 854 1300 845 33
691 803 738 676 321 737 22719855 1390 845 3
5316 087 43 985 580 - 49 302 687
52 285 112 12310 535 303 545 64 960 792
3905 20 265 929 - 29 260 834
B D50 1574 047 - 1582 057
57583754 87 137 0 353 545 145 124 380
{49 804 353) (53 210 511) (2 366 304) (105 381 168)
- (6 452 309) |558) (6 452 BET)
7 789 401 27 474 2T {1973 317) 33 200 355
(38 738 990} (38 736 990)
(1934 738) {1934 738)
T 789 401 (13 197 457) {1873 317} (7 381 373)
582 648 021 977 403 B4S 3 512 806 1563 564 672
977 403 253 582 648 613 1512 806 1 563 564 672
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Notes to the CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

34. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

BANK

2018

Mt revenie

Met interest income

Met fee and commission ncome

Mt foreign exchange trading Incoma
Ciher operating ncome

Total segment income

Expenses

Operaling expenses

Recovery/(impainment) [ossas on
loans and advanoces

Reportable segment operating (loss)
profit before tax

Other gains and losses

Central administration costs and directors salardes
Finance cosls

Profit {Loss) hefore tax

Reportable segment asssts

Reportable segment labilities
and equity

2014

Net revenus

Nat interest intome

Mat fee and commission incoma

Met forelgn axchange trading Income

Othar oparating incoma

Total sagment incame

Exponses

Operaling epenses

Recovary/impainment ) |osses on loans and advancos

Reportable segment operating (loss)
profit before tax

Other gains and losses

Ceantral administration costs and direclors salafies
Fmance costs

Profit (loss) before tax

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities and equity

Retail and Wholesale
operations Banking  Unallocated Total
7535 205 30 179 800 37 714 BOS
56 760 657 5822 8 B2 583 511
- 18 338 580 18 338 580
B 650 592 002 588 652
64 302 512 54 933 036 119 235 548
(61 127 814) (78 780 464) {139 208 378)
. (8 321 194) (B 321 194)
3174 598 {32 168 622) (28 984 D24)
- (43 DB5 B18) (43 065 818)
(21 260) {3 360 BE9) (3 382 159)
3153 338 (78 585 339) (75 442 D01}
£71 533 203 709 084 618 1 380 617 B22
T00 143 645 GBO 474 176 1 380 617 821
5 316 087 43586 580 48 302 667
51672168 12 704 079 64 578 247
3905 29 265 020 28 269 B34
8 080 1 674 DAT 1 BA&2 Og7
57 200 210 BT 530 635 144 730 B4S
{45 804 753) (53 210 511) (103 014 B64)
- {6 452 309) {6 452 309)
7 395 857 27 BET 815 35263872
. {38 736 B00) {38 736 990)
. (1934 738} (1934 738)
7395 B5T (12 BO3 913) (5 408 056)
546682724 1022217114 1 568 880 838
1022 018 158 546 B8O 679 1 568 899 838
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Appendix 11 - DET AILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2015

GROUP BANK
2015 2014 2015 2014
K K K K
NET INTEREST INCOME
Intarest income 148 899 440 146 052 057 146 440 959 146 052 057
Interest expense {109 133 629) {96 749 390) (108 726 154) (96 749 390)
Net interest income 39 765 811 49 302 667 37 714 BOS 49 302 667
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Fees and commissions 40 335279 42 425 323 38 950 200 42 425 303
Gains from dealings in foreign
clufrencies 18 338 580 28 269 834 18 338 580 20 268 834
Ledger fees 24 504 992 23644 551 24 531 344 23 644 551
Rental income T7 090 T8 490 77080 T8 480
Gain on disposal of assels - 10 000 - 10 000
B3 255 41 a5 428 198 81 897 214 25428 178
TOTAL INCOME 123 021 752 144 730 B6S 119 612 019 144 730 845
OPERATING EXPENSES AND BAD DEBTS
Employee benefil expenses 89 895 513 68 835 5156 96 815 321 68 088 486
Deprecialion expanse 14 948 T18 11 754 620 14 B94 212 11739792
Postage and communication cosls 14 108 972 11 289 891 14 033 873 11278 802
Rent and rates 12 066 586 8782 761 11 816 499 B719 295
Impairment charge for cradit losses 8 490 981 6452 504 8321194 B 452 309
Office and securily expenses 6 368 316 5976 514 6332 233 5951 660
Professional and legal fees 5013 444 3 780 691 5 340 486 3 672 657
Motor vehicle expenses 5 096 996 6376119 5 096 466 6 375 339
Advertising 4411018 5882175 4 309 545 5845 925
Travel expenses J 98T 683 i 226 855 3901 304 4 224 323
Dther miscellaneous axpenses 3 578 856 4 941 951 3 383 522 3747 544
Computer axpenses 4 085 376 2244 818 3729 792 2 089 836
Fee and commission expense 3382159 1526 317 3382159 1834 738
Repairs and maintenance 3 250 662 3118 642 3 246 412 3083 405
Medical expenses 3113774 1 500 538 3 052 807 1487 910
Printing and stationary 1572 688 1645713 1539 930 1641571
Directors fees and expanses 2 410 697 1049 892 2 410 697 1049 866
Subscriptions 1028 967 989 146 1017 013 988 160
Insurance 625 439 610 877 615125 609 825
Water and electricity 635 815 547 BBT 635 B15 547 BBT
Donations 339132 506 688 338 83z 506 688
Loss on disposal of asseis 376 469 - 376 469 -
Entertainment 66 577 82253 63 527 79103
Bad dabts written off 420 T87 - 420 787
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 200 185 625 152112238 195 054 020 150 138 901
LOSS BEFORE TAX (77 163 873) {7 381 373) (75 442 001) (5 408 056)
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W Account for farmers

m Soc It?h; (Scliools, chuerches & Small NGOs) Accounts
W Salary Account

m Current Accounts iychecking Account)

W [oans

W [nvestLease

B Student Accounts
B Account for :police, ZNs, ZAF,& Zambia Army

B [nvestment Accounts

B Savings Accounts

B SME Kantemba Business Accounts

M Forex Accounts

B [nvestMobile (Mobile Banking)

B [nvestNet (Internet Banking)

B VISA GreenCard, VISA InvestGo,
PayEasy and More!

Products & Services
e @ fragas

HEAD OFFICE: Cidy's Building
Greal East Road Plot N, 1% 28/19029,
INVesStrust © o s tuks, zambis
Bank Tel +260 211 204682/ 204685 / 2094674
Fic Fase +260 211 294659

B Lusak L YU B Solwezi

i‘f;"k‘l :};m;[;‘; o ! L[' h,l £ If B Kabwe |® Choma
| e | 1 aoomoive ] nngsione

s e e e HUHIESTONE | @ Ndola | @ Mongu
B Chipata | @ Chirundu B Lumwana :

BRANCH
NETWORK

Bank With Your Own




